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The Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens (RTBG), established in 1818, is Tasmania’s 
only botanical gardens and is custodian of the state’s botanical collections. In addition to 
the management of Tasmania’s botanical collections, the Gardens is responsible for the 
conservation and presentation of the significant built and cultural heritage of the site in 
accordance with the RTBG Strategic Master Plan 2009-2029 (SMP). 

As one of Australia’s premier cool climate gardens with a plant collection in excess of 
4,000 taxa, the RTBG strives to provide a range of experiences that will enhance the 
community’s awareness and appreciation of plants and the Gardens’ cultural heritage. 
The RTBG is distinguished by several unique collections and is home to the world’s only 
%ubantarctic "lant �ouse showcasing the flora of �ac=uarie �sland� The Tasmanian 
native collection is significant due to the uni=ue nature of Tasmaniaps flora, with around 
30% of species being endemic to the State. Complementing this is the Tasmanian Seed 
Conservation Centre (TSCC), which since it was established in 2005 has become the 
cornerstone of the Gardens’ conservation strategy. The TSCC currently holds 2,010 
collections of 1,177 taxa and 49 million viable seeds.
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IN RECOGNITION OF THE DEEP 
HISTORY AND CULTURE OF THIS 
ISLAND, WE ACKNOWLEDGE 
AND PAY RESPECT TO ALL 
TASMANIAN ABORIGINAL 
PEOPLE, THE PAST AND PRESENT 
CUSTODIANS OF THE LAND.

30% of species being endemic to the State. Complementing this is the Tasmanian Seed 
Conservation Centre (TSCC), which since it was established in 2005 has become the 
cornerstone of the Gardens’ conservation strategy. The TSCC currently holds 2,010 
collections of 1,177 taxa and 49 million viable seeds.



FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIR

������� has been another siInifiEant year Hor the 
Royal Tasmanian BotaniEal GarFens� 1Xer this 
���month RerioF our team has welEomeF oXer 
������� Xisitors to the site� The Xisitation fiIures 
show what a sReEial RlaEe the GarFens Eontinue 
to be to our Tasmanian Eommunity anF Xisitors 
Hrom all oXer the worlF�

The year woulF not haXe been Rossible without 
our HantastiE team oH staHH� our Xolunteers� 
HrienFs� Rartners anF Fonors s thanM you to 
all oH you� + woulF also liMe to reEoInise the 
Eontributions oH my BoarF EolleaIues anF 
the onIoinI suRRort we haXe reEeiXeF Hrom 
the &eRartment oH 0atural ResourEes anF 
'nXironment Tasmania s aIain� thanM you�

&urinI this year we haXe seen Hurther BoarF 
renewal� with Therese Taylor finishinI her time on 
the RTGB BoarF� + woulF liMe to thanM Therese 
Hor her outstanFinI Eontribution FurinI her time 
on the BoarF� + also warmly welEome 5oRhie 
&aXiFson who has reEently EommenEeF on the 
RTBG BoarF� anF + looM HorwarF to 5oRhieos 
Eontribution oXer the EominI years�

/iFway throuIh this reRortinI RerioF we 
welEomeF a new &ireEtor to the GarFens� 
;ann GaInon� &esRite only beinI with us Hor a 
relatiXely short time� ;ann has alreaFy maFe a 
siInifiEant Eontribution to the GarFens anF + looM 
HorwarF to EontinuinI to worM with him oXer the 
EominI years� ThanM you� ;ann�

This reRort EoXers oHH on the Fetail oH the 
������� finanEial year� 9e haXe maFe siInifiEant 
RroIress aIain this year anF + woulF RartiEularly 
liMe to note the worM that has been Fone in 
initiatinI a FetaileF reXiew oH the 5trateIiE 
/aster 2lan anF the siInifiEant RroIress that 
has been aEhieXeF with the 8isitor 'ZRerienEe 
2roLeEt� &esRite neither oH these RroLeEts 
beinI finaliseF at the time oH RublishinI our 
annual reRort� they are both well aFXanEeF 
anF + am eZEiteF to see their RroIress as we 
moXe into ��������

The BoarF remain HoEuseF anF EommitteF on 
our strateIiE Rriorities� + am really RrouF oH the 
Ireat RroIress that has been maFe in all areas 
in this RerioF�

+ woulF liMe to thanM our 2atron� *er 'ZEellenEy 
the *onourable Barbara BaMer A%� GoXernor oH 
Tasmania� Hor her onIoinI suRRort anF Rassion 
Hor the GarFens�

To our /inister� the *onourable RoIer ,aensEh 
/2� thanM you Hor your onIoinI Eommitment 
anF enthusiasm Hor the GarFens� we are Xery 
IrateHul Hor the suRRort we reEeiXe Hrom the 
/inister anF this year has been no eZEeRtion�

+ Heel Xery RriXileIeF to be the %hair oH RTBG� 
anF + am Eonstantly reminFeF while at the 
GarFens oH the Xalue oH saHe� RubliE sRaEes that 
Ereate EonneEtions with nature anF what this 
site means to all Tasmanians� + am eZtremely 
eZEiteF about this neZt RerioF oH renewal Hor 
the GarFens� anF the BoarF is EommitteF 
to ensurinI we Eontinue to FeliXer a saHe� 
resReEtHul anF Suality eZRerienEe Hor all our 
Xisitors� now anF into the Huture�

+n aEEorFanEe with the Royal Tasmanian 
Botanical Gardens Act 2002� + submit this 
annual reRort on behalH oH the RTBG BoarF�|

Kathryn McCann
Chair, RTBG Board

On behalf of the Board of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens, 
it is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for 2022-23.
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Another notable imRroXement initiateF in the 
Rast year is the reXitalisation oH the Hormer 
'asy AEEess GarFen� This areaos reFeXeloRment 
inEluFes a RubliEly aEEessible troRiEal Rlant 
FisRlay EolleEtion anF an aFLaEent Ratio with 
sweeRinI Xiews oH the lush 'astern lawns� 
The baEMFroR oH this new sRaEe will Heature 
the *eritaIe 5uRerintenFent *ouse anF the 
'arFley�9ilmot 9all�

+ woulF liMe to aEMnowleFIe the immense 
suRRort reEeiXeF Hrom the &eRartment oH 
0atural ResourEes anF 'nXironment Tasmania 
(0R' Tas�� The assistanEe reEeiXeF Hrom 0R' 
Tas staHH� in the Rast year� has been EruEial in 
FeliXerinI our Fay�to�Fay oRerations�|

+ woulF also liMe to taMe the oRRortunity to 
aEMnowleFIe our Ratron� *er 'ZEellenEy the 
*onourable Barbara BaMer A%� GoXernor oH 
Tasmania� %hair oH RTBG BoarF� -athryn /E%ann 
anF the *onourable RoIer ,aensEh /2� /inister 
Hor 2arMs� Hor their EontinueF FeFiEation anF 
Eommitment to the GarFens�

Yann Gagnon
Director

The Rast year has been another suEEessHul one 
Hor the Royal Tasmanian BotaniEal GarFens� with 
oXer ������� Xisitors enLoyinI our inEreFible 
site� This suEEess is a FireEt reƃeEtion oH the 
Eollaboration anF Eommitment Hrom our BoarF� 
staHH� Xolunteers anF (rienFs oH the GarFens�

+ woulF liMe to aEMnowleFIe the Ienerosity oH 
those who XolunteereF their time anF those 
who FonateF to the GarFens� +n �������� 
�� Xolunteers tooM Rart in aEtiXities� whiEh 
EolleEtiXely EontributeF a total oH ����� 
hours to our orIanisation� The GarFens also 
reEeiXeF oXer �������� in Ienerous Fonations� 
To all the Xolunteers anF Fonors� your MinF 
Eontributions are Raramount to the suEEess oH 
our orIanisation� anF we are IrateHul Hor your 
EontinueF suRRort� Rassion anF trust�

+n the Rast �� months� the RTBG BoarF initiateF 
the RroEess oH reXiewinI its 5trateIiE /aster 
2lan� This imRortant RroLeEt Eonsists oH a reXiew 
oH the RTBG Xision� mission anF obLeEtiXes� anF 
inEluFes Mey staMeholFer enIaIement aEtiXities�|

Another imRortant RroLeEt initiateF in ������� is 
the restart oH the 8isitor 'ZRerienEe 2roLeEt� The 
GarFens has now enIaIeF an arEhiteEtural firm 
to worM with our team in FeliXerinI this maLor 
initiatiXe� The RroLeEt inEluFes FeXeloRinI a saHe 
FroR�oHH area� an aEEessible boarFwalM linMinI 
the FroR�oHH area to the GarFens entranEe� an 
imRroXeF welEome Roint with new amenities 
Hor Xisitors� an aEEessible boarFwalM Hrom the 
welEome Roint to the 8isitor %entre anF Xarious 
muEh�neeFeF reHurbishments to the 8isitor 
%entre� The sEoRe oH worMs also inEluFes the 
installation oH an innoXatiXe EolleEtion HeaturinI 
Tasmaniaos uniSue ƃora�|

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

$115,474
raised through public donations

446,099
visitors
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OUR VALUES
+n aEhieXinI its Xision anF mission� the RTBG 
is EommitteF to a ranIe oH Xalues that will 
IuiFe its oReration� These Xalues inEluFe�

> Sustainability

> Pursuit of excellence

> Fair dealing in commercial and 
community service

> Social and environmental consciousness

> Scientific inquiry and integrity

> Public accessibility and responsiveness

> Staff involvement in planning and programs

> Recognition of, and assistance for, 
Friends, volunteers and supporters

> Administrative efficiency and accountability

> Respect and recognition for employees and 
all other stakeholders.

OUR VISION
Create and maintain an exceptional Garden that enriches Tasmania’s social and 
cultural life, showcases and contributes to the conservation of the flora of Tasmania 
and educates the community about the importance of plants.

OUR MISSION
We sustainably manage the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens, conserve and develop 
our living collections and heritage, and create and deliver an exemplary and enlightening 
visitor experience and thriving organisational culture.

ABOUT US

OUR GOALS
> To promote the Gardens and engage 

with the Tasmanian Community

> The strategic management of thriving 
living collections

> A quality environment that provides an 
exemplary visitor experience 

> Partnerships that deliver maximum value 
for the Gardens

> Our people and culture deliver a quality 
visitor experience

> A sustainable, self-supporting enterprise.
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GOVERNANCE

BOARD MEMBERS  
Board members as at 30 June 2023

The RTBG is a 5tate GoXernment statutory 
orIanisation� IoXerneF by the Royal Tasmanian 
Botanical Gardens Act 2002 anF aFministereF 
by the &eRartment oH 0atural ResourEes anF 
'nXironment Tasmania (0R' Tas�� The RTBG 
BoarF is aRRointeF by� anF reRorts to� the 
/inister Hor 2arMs�

The BoarF is resRonsible Hor manaIinI� 
EonserXinI anF enhanEinI the Royal 
Tasmanian BotaniEal GarFens in 
aEEorFanEe with the AEt�

Members of the Board from left ...

The BoarF is resRonsible Hor manaIinI� 
EonserXinI anF enhanEinI the Royal 
Tasmanian BotaniEal GarFens in 
aEEorFanEe with the AEt�

Ian Cresswell  |  Philip Mussared  |  Kathryn McCann – Chair  |  the Honourable Roger Jaensch MP
Sophie Davidson  |  Abigail Foley  |  Vanessa Pinto  
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE 
Members as at 30 June 2023

Philip Mussared – Chair
Ian Cresswell
Therese Taylor 

MANAGING DIVERSITY
At the RTBG� we are EommitteF to XaluinI anF 
resReEtinI eaEh other as EolleaIues anF Reers� 
9e Xalue the HaEt that inFiXiFuals brinI FiHHerent 
iFeas� sMills anF baEMIrounFs to their worM in the 
GarFens� anF we reEoInise that ReoRle haXe 
FiHHerent neeFs anF asRirations� 9e Xalue the 
FiXerse baEMIrounFs� sMills anF Eontributions 
oH all emRloyees anF treat eaEh other anF our 
Xisitors with resReEt�

29.95
full time equivalent

STAFF
RTBG staHH are emRloyeF throuIh 0R' Tas.
The RTBG reEoInises anF Xalues the wealth oH 
eZRerienEe anF MnowleFIe oH our staHH� who haXe 
helReF to FeXeloR anF manaIe these GarFens� 
The RTBG manaIes its human resourEes in 
aEEorFanEe with the State Service Act 2002, 
Xarious emRloyment awarFs anF 0R' Tas RoliEies 
anF IuiFelines�

At �� ,une ����� the RTBG haF �� staHH 
members� emRloyeF at the eSuiXalent oH ����� 
Hull�time eSuiXalent staHH ((T'�� The emRloyment 
status oH the staHH EomRriseF �� Rermanent staHH 
at ����� (T'� � staHH on fiZeF term EontraEts at 
��� (T'� anF � staHH on fiZeF term EontraEts that 
are emRloyeF on an hourly basis�

36
staff employed

Therese TaylorDaniel Leesong

BOARD MEMBERS  
Board members as at 30 June 2023  (Absent from photo)

HOW WE OPERATE
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RISK MANAGEMENT
The RTBG taMes a RroaEtiXe aRRroaEh to risM 
iFentifiEation anF mitiIation anF has FeXeloReF 
risM mitiIation strateIies assoEiateF with all 
asReEts oH oRerations� The BoarFos AuFit anF RisM 
%ommittee assists in manaIinI the orIanisationos 
risM� The RTBG reFuEes finanEial risM throuIh 
insuranEe EoXer� broMereF insuranEe RoliEies are 
useF Hor RubliE liability� RroHessional inFemnity� 
motor XehiEle anF Rersonal aEEiFent risMs� 
anF the Tasmanian RisM /anaIement (unF is 
aEEesseF Hor worMers EomRensation EoXeraIe� 

ASSET MANAGEMENT
The RTBG maintains a reIister oH all assets 
eZEeeFinI �������� whiEh are reEorFeF 
anF reRorteF in aEEorFanEe with Australian 
AEEountinI 5tanFarFs� 2roRerty anF 
inHrastruEture are reXalueF on a reIular basis 
by eZternal eZRerts anF reRorteF annually in 
the finanEial statements on a Hair Xalue basis� 
Asset maintenanEe is manaIeF in house by the 
(aEilities � +nHrastruEture /aintenanEe 7nit� 
9e are IuiFeF by our 5trateIiE %onserXation 
anF Asset /anaIement 2lan in FetermininI the 
Rriorities anF nature oH maintenanEe worMs�

A seRarate reIister is maintaineF Hor Rortable 
anF attraEtiXe items EostinI less than �������� 
anF inXentory helF Hor sale is reEorFeF throuIh 
a EomRuteriseF Roint oH sale system� 5eRarate 
Fatabase reEorFs are also maintaineF Hor 
sReEialist EolleEtions� inEluFinI the seeFbanM� 
Rlant EolleEtion� the herbarium anF library�

WORKPLACE HEALTH 
AND SAFETY (WHS)
The RTBG is EommitteF to RroXiFinI a saHe 
worMRlaEe anF meetinI our obliIations unFer 
the Work Health and Safety Act 2012� 'ZRert 
aFXiEe is RroXiFeF to all RTBG staHH by a 9*5 
aFXiser Hrom 0R' Tas� 1ur 9*5 %ommittee 
RroXiFes leaFershiR in the saHety anF wellbeinI 
oH staHH anF aEtiXely manaIes anF resRonFs 
to a wiFe ranIe oH GarFens�relateF 9*5 
matters� ReIular site auFits anF RroEeFural 
anF worM RraEtiEe reXiews are unFertaMen by 
the %ommittee� 

*ealth anF saHety in the worMRlaEe is our hiIhest 
Rriority anF we maMe a Eommitment to�

> Take all reasonable care to ensure good 
health and safety practices are implemented 
at all times

> Identify and support measures to eliminate 
or minimise unsafe conditions including 
reporting all accidents, incidents and hazards

> Assume personal responsibility for our own 
safety and for others by always operating in 
a safe and appropriate manner.

Assume personal responsibility for our own 
safety and for others by always operating in 
a safe and appropriate manner.

10 | RTBG | Annual Report 2022-23



Annual Report 2022-23 | RTBG | 11



Executive
(Director)

> AFminister anF manaIe the BotaniEal 
GarFens as FireEteF by the BoarF

> 2roXiFe hiIh�leXel� strateIiE leaFershiR 
anF RoliEy aFXiEe to the BoarF

> .eaF the eHHeEtiXe manaIement� oRerations 
anF strateIiE RlanninI oH the RTBG

> %arry out the HunEtions oH RTBG as stateF 
in the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 
Act 2002

Gardens Operations
(Manager, Garden Operations)

> The botaniEal estate� Rlant EolleEtions 
anF FisRlays

> *eritaIe lanFsEaRe assets anF inHrastruEture

> 0ursery anF houseF EolleEtions

> Assets� inHrastruEture anF HaEilities

Science and Conservation 
(Tasmanian Seed Conservation 
Centre – Manager, Seedbank),

> %onserXation oH Tasmanian ƃora 
throuIh seeF banMinI RroIrams

Botanical Resources
(Horticultural Botanist)

> &oEumentinI anF manaIinI the 
Rlant EolleEtions Fatabase

> 2lant researEh� health RrotoEols 
anF monitorinI

> /aintenanEe oH anEillary library� 
herbarium anF arEhiXal EolleEtions

> AssistinI with the Tasmanian 5eeF 
%onserXation %entreos fielFworM RroIrams 
anF laboratory EolleEtions

Commercial Operations
(Manager, Commercial Operations)

> /arMetinI anF Rromotion

> 8isitor eZRerienEe anF Xisitor serXiEes

> 'Xent manaIement anF Xenue hire

> Tours

> &onations anF HunFraisinI

> %ommerEial RartnershiRs

> /eFia liaison

> 8olunteers

> Retail

Business Services
(Manager, Business Services)

> BuFIet manaIement anF finanEial reRortinI

> Business� aFministratiXe anF +T suRRort

> %oorFination oH human resourEes

> ReEorFs manaIement

> Asset manaIement

OUR ORGANISATION

The Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens is led by the Executive and comprises the following 
business units. The major responsibilities of each unit manager are outlined below.

BuFIet manaIement anF finanEial reRortinI

> Business� aFministratiXe anF +T suRRort

> %oorFination oH human resourEes

> ReEorFs manaIement

> Asset manaIement
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GARDENS OPERATIONS
Botanical Estate and Plant Collections

ThrouIhout the year� the *ortiEulture teams 
EarrieF out renoXations to numerous EolleEtions 
in the GarFens alonI with the onIoinI 
maintenanEe anF uRMeeR oH the botaniEal estate�

The Grey GarFen� loEateF at the lower entranEe 
to the GarFens� was remoXeF anF reRlaEeF with 
a new RlantinI oH Eoastal anF FrouIht tolerant 
Rlants� usinI a Eombination oH Australian anF 
eZotiE sReEies� This worM EomRlementeF the 
new worMs EarrieF out to the roaFway anF Raths 
leaFinI to the lower entranEe� Ireatly imRroXinI 
the Xisitor aEEess eZRerienEe in this area� 

An automateF irriIation system was installeF in 
the 0ew <ealanF EolleEtion� reRlaEinI an aIeF 
manual system�

The Australian Hernery reEeiXeF an uRIraFe to 
the mistinI system� whiEh will enable the Hurther 
FeXeloRment oH this EolleEtion to inEluFe a 
Ireater reRresentation oH Australian Hern sReEies�

.anFsEaRe worMs to the Hront area oH The 2oF 
meetinI Xenue EommenEeF in /ay ����� As 
Rart oH this worM� the RounFhouse builFinI was 
FemolisheF anF the area RreRareF to Ereate an 
oRen IatherinI sRaEe� RroXiFinI another oRtion 
Hor outFoor HunEtions as well as a welEome 
sRaEe Hor our Xisitors� The new worMs inEluFe 
the Ereation oH a larIe leXel area to be useF Hor 
Easual seatinI anF IatherinIs� new stone eFIinI 
to the IarFen beFs surrounFinI the north anF 
west HaEes oH The 2oF� anF installation oH IarFen 
beFs to Fefine the entranEe to The 2oF�

9orM EommenEeF in late /ay ���� on the 'asy 
AEEess Ilasshouse as Rart oH a reFeXeloRment oH 
this HaEility� whiEh Hormerly houseF a EolleEtion 
oH %auFiEiHorm Rlants anF EaEti� The new worMs 
inEluFe the reRlaEement oH Ilass Ranes on the 
rooH anF walls with RolyEarbonate sheetinI� 
renFerinI oH the outsiFe wall anF imRroXements 
to the aEEess oH the builFinI� A new troRiEal ƃora 
FisRlay is HoEuseF on Rlants Hrom the RineaRRle 
Hamily� as well as the inElusion oH the eZistinI 
%auFiEiHorm Rlants� 

Nursery and Housed Collections

1ur nursery staHH RroXiFe an imRortant role 
in RroFuEinI Rlant material Hor the in�IrounF 
Rlant EolleEtions throuIhout the GarFens� as 
well as the houseF EolleEtions that inEluFe the 
%onserXatory anF the 5ub AntarEtiE *ouse� 

The Eool Elimate orEhiF EolleEtion useF 
eZtensiXely throuIhout the %onserXatory was 
eZRanFeF Hurther with the aFFition oH seXeral 
new sReEies� anF uRIraFes were maFe to the 
%onserXatoryos internal FisRlay HaEilities�

The nursery aIain RroFuEeF oXer ����� heirloom 
tomato Rlants anF a larIe Xariety oH Eulinary 
herbs� XeIetable seeFlinIs anF Rlants Hrom the 
RTBG EolleEtions Hor the 5RrinI 2lant 5ale in 
1Etober ����� AlonI with the annual Rlant sale� 
the nursery RroFuEes Rlants Hor sale throuIh the 
BotaniEal 5hoR� Hrom material sourEeF Hrom the 
EolleEtions throuIhout the GarFens� 

+n eZEess oH �� Tasmanian ƃora Rlants were 
FonateF by the nursery to the Tasmanian 
BushlanF GarFen� reRresentinI Ziera litoralis, 
Ozothamnus lycopoides, Myoporum parvifolium, 
anF Thryptomene micrantha� inEluFinI seXeral 
threateneF sReEies� 

The RTBG reEeiXeF two Libocedrus bidwillii Hrom 
the Tasmanian Arboretum in &eEember ����� 
This EomRletes the RTBGos EolleEtion oH fiXe 
Libocedrus sReEies� all oH whiEh are threateneF�

BUSINESS UNIT OUTCOMES

.anFsEaRe worMs to the Hront area oH The 2oF 
meetinI Xenue EommenEeF in /ay ����� As 
Rart oH this worM� the RounFhouse builFinI was 
FemolisheF anF the area RreRareF to Ereate an 
oRen IatherinI sRaEe� RroXiFinI another oRtion 
Hor outFoor HunEtions as well as a welEome 
sRaEe Hor our Xisitors� The new worMs inEluFe 
the Ereation oH a larIe leXel area to be useF Hor 
Easual seatinI anF IatherinIs� new stone eFIinI 
to the IarFen beFs surrounFinI the north anF 
west HaEes oH The 2oF� anF installation oH IarFen 
beFs to Fefine the entranEe to The 2oF�

9orM EommenEeF in late /ay ���� on the 'asy 
AEEess Ilasshouse as Rart oH a reFeXeloRment oH 
this HaEility� whiEh Hormerly houseF a EolleEtion 
oH %auFiEiHorm Rlants anF EaEti� The new worMs 
inEluFe the reRlaEement oH Ilass Ranes on the 
rooH anF walls with RolyEarbonate sheetinI� 
renFerinI oH the outsiFe wall anF imRroXements 
to the aEEess oH the builFinI� A new troRiEal ƃora 
FisRlay is HoEuseF on Rlants Hrom the RineaRRle 
Hamily� as well as the inElusion oH the eZistinI 
%auFiEiHorm Rlants� 

7000+
Heirloom Tomato plants produced

17
Tasmanian plants donated to the 

Tasmanian Bushland Garden
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(ollowinI the breaMFown oH a maLor irriIation 
system in the Eentre oH the GarFens� the Assets 
anF +nHrastruEture team EarrieF out an eZtensiXe 
oXerhaul oH the system inXolXinI the installation 
oH wirelessly EontrolleF XalXes that are to be 
useF as a temRorary measure Rrior to a new 
Rermanent Eontrol system beinI installeF in 
late ����� 

1ther worMs by the team inEluFeF the 
oXerseeinI oH uRIraFes to liIhtinI anF Rower 
suRRlies� maintenanEe oH outFoor timber 
struEtures inEluFinI the .ily 2onF FeEMs anF 
the ,aRanese GarFen HenEe� EoorFination oH 
uRIraFes to the 5uRerintenFentos *ouse� anF 
the RroEurement anF suRerXision oH EontraEteF 
worMs Hor reRairs to roaFs anF Rathways�

Event Support

The GarFen 1Rerations unit RroXiFeF imRortant 
site suRerXision anF FireEtion to the RroFuEtion 
Erews oH all maLor EonEerts anF eXents helF at 
the GarFens FurinI �������� This is a EritiEal role 
that our staHH Rlay to ensure the RroteEtion oH 
GarFen assets�

Tree Management

/anaIement oH the RTBG tree EolleEtion 
is baseF on RreXentatiXe maintenanEe anF 
imRroXement oH tree Eultural RraEtiEes� 1ur 
strateIiE manaIement oH the RTBG tree 
EolleEtion is baseF on a lonI�term aRRroaEh 
to tree Eare� risM mitiIation anF suEEession� to 
ensure a seEure Huture Hor this imRortant Rlant 
EolleEtion� &urinI the year� a siInifiEant amount 
oH remeFial RruninI worM was EarrieF out on the 
EoniHer EolleEtion� anF a larIe Elaret ash situateF 
in the eastern Rart oH the IarFen was remoXeF 
Fue to the RresenEe oH an eZtensiXe amount oH 
FiebaEM throuIhout the EanoRy�

The oaM EolleEtion in the northern seEtion oH the 
GarFens RroXiFeF the HoEus Hor the Tasmanian 
Tree %limbinI %omRetition� whiEh was helF on 
� anF � ARril �����

Heritage Landscapes

'ssential reRair worM was EarrieF out to the 
eZterior walls oH the %onserXatory in late ����� 
/ore than �� stone bloEMs were reRlaEeF in the 
north�west Eorner oH the builFinI� 9eatherinI 
anF FeEomRosition oH the stone haF resulteF 
in EraEMinI anF EollaRse in some� while others 
eZhibiteF FelaminatinI oH the outer layers 
reSuirinI reRlaEement with new stone HaEinI�

Assets, Infrastructure and Facilities

The Assets anF +nHrastruEture team EontinueF to 
RroXiFe Xaluable maintenanEe anF reRair worM 
aEross all asReEts oH the GarFens� inEluFinI the 
remoXal anF reRlaEement oH the timber water 
wheel in the ,aRanese GarFen� RebuilFinI oH 
the wheel was EarrieF out by the 9ooFen Boat 
5Ehool in (ranMlin� taMinI aRRroZimately ��� 
hours to EomRlete� 

AHter more than �� years oH serXiEe� the 
meEhanism oH the (loral %loEM reSuireF 
rebuilFinI in the latter halH oH ����� The worMinIs 
oH the EloEM were remoXeF anF taMen oHHsite to 
haXe eZtensiXe enIineerinI worMs EarrieF out� 

9ith the use oH RubliE Fonation HunFinI� 
renoXation worMs were EarrieF out in anF arounF 
the Ia\ebo loEateF aFLaEent to the RlayIrounF 
lawn� 0ew EonErete Raths were installeF to 
RroXiFe imRroXeF aEEessibility� while the Ia\ebo 
itselH was reRainteF anF a new table anF seatinI 
were installeF within�

RTBG Director, Yann Gagnon and RTBG Chair of the Board, 
Kathryn McCann are assisting Her Excellency the Honourable 
Barbara Baker AC, in the planting of a Quercus suber, Cork Oak.

FiebaEM throuIhout the EanoRy�

The oaM EolleEtion in the northern seEtion oH the 
GarFens RroXiFeF the HoEus Hor the Tasmanian 
Tree %limbinI %omRetition� whiEh was helF on 
� anF � ARril �����

14 | RTBG | Annual Report 2022-23



A surXey Hor rare alRine EuFweeFs was EonFuEteF 
in ,anuary ���� on Ben .omonF with the 
assistanEe oH members oH ThreateneF 2lants 
Tasmania� This fielF triR RroXeF to be Xery 
suEEessHul� with the FisEoXery oH what is liMely a 
new sReEies oH Ewartia� 5iInifiEant EolleEtions 
were maFe oH the more Eommon EuFweeFs� 
Argyrotegium mackayi anF Euchiton lateralis� anF 
the new Ewartia sReEies�

The (inIal Tier is an area that was burnt in ���� 
anF so RroXiFes EolleEtinI oRRortunities Hor 
seXeral sReEies that only ƃower heaXily aHter 
fire� 9ith the assistanEe oH Xolunteers Hrom the 
0orthern BranEh oH the 5oEiety Hor GrowinI 
Australian 2lants (nb5GA2�� the seeFbanM 
EolleEteF seeF Hrom seXeral sReEies� 5eeF 
Hrom the threateneF natiXe lily Tricoryne elatior
was EolleEteF Hrom a RriXate RroRerty in the 
(inIal 8alley with a larIe amount oH suRRort 
Hrom nb5GA2 members anF Rermission oH the 
lanFowner� 5urXeyinI suIIests that the site miIht 
be the larIest RoRulation oH Tricoryne in the 5tate�

(ielFworM surXeyinI FisEoXereF three new 
RoRulations oH the threateneF Xerochrysum 
palustre on the Eentral Rlateau� anF Hour new 
RoRulations oH the Roorly Mnown anF Rossibly 
threateneF seFIe� Carex ‘Algonkian Rivulet’� The 
seFIe FisEoXery has brouIht the total number 
oH RresseF sReEimens to seXen anF has alloweF 
the Tasmanian *erbarium to beIin the RroEess oH 
FesEribinI this Rlant�

SCIENCE AND 
CONSERVATION
Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre (TSCC)

%olleEtinI oRRortunities aEross Tasmania were 
Ienerally stronI this year with the seeFbanM 
reEeiXinI �� EolleEtions� totallinI oXer � million 
seeFs� The Tasmanian 1rEhiF %onserXation anF 
ResearEh 2roIram IrouR maFe �� EolleEtions oH 
�� threateneF orEhiF sReEies� three oH whiEh were 
harXesteF Hrom the RTBG nursery EolleEtions�

Volunteers assisting with survey of rare alpine cudweeds.

3 million
seeds collected by the TSCC
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Clockwise from top left: Surveying Cypanthera in the Fingal 
Tier; Surveying Pultenaea, St Marys; Volunteers assisting 
with survey of rare alpine cudweeds; Japanese Garden 
Waterwheel install; Araucaria receiving treatment; and 
Seed Bank Manager James Wood collecting Rytidosporum.
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Botanical Resources 

+n AuIust ����� .aura 9illiams was reEruiteF to 
the role oH *ortiEultural Botanist� 2riority worM 
HoEuseF on Rlant Fatabase uRFates anF uRFates 
to our maRRinI systems� 7RFates were maFe to 
FoEuments about Rlant EolleEtion manaIement 
anF to systems Hor EomRilinI inHormation on 
tree health� the 5iInifiEant Tree %olleEtion� 
bioseEurity monitorinI anF maLor IarFen 
FeXeloRments�

GarFen auFits haXe been unFertaMen on the 
5iInifiEant Tree %olleEtion� /yrtaEeae sReEies 
(to inHorm a national /yrtle Rust 5urXey� anF the 
Tasmanian EolleEtions (renEh 'ZRloreros GarFen� 
/ain .awn areas� Resilient GarFen� anF the 
%aEtus %olleEtion� 

As Rart oH a national bioseEurity monitorinI 
RroIram� we Eontinually unFertaMe monitorinI 
Hor fiXe Rests anF Fiseases that are not Eurrently 
HounF in Tasmania� The health oH the 5iInifiEant 
Tree %olleEtion was assesseF anF most trees 
were HounF to be in eZEellent health� 

The *ortiEultural Botanist anF seXeral other 
staHH attenFeF the �th Global BotaniE GarFens 
%onHerenEe in /elbourne in 5eRtember ����� 
A Eollaboration with the Australian AntarEtiE 
&iXision enableF the RTBG to host a series 
oH interRretation RieEes that are reHerreF to 
as AntarEtiE 'ZRlorer 5tations� The Hour mini 
Eontainer stations FisRlayeF siInaIe anF obLeEts 
to interRret the stories oH AntarEtiEa anF the 
5ubantarEtiE +slanFs� 

TeEhniEal inRut was RroXiFeF on the 0ational 
AEtion 2lan Hor Tree anF Timber 2ests� the (ire 
Resistant 2lants BroEhure (Tasmania (ire 5erXiEe�� 
the +7%0 55% 2osition 5tatement on the Role 
oH BotaniE GarFens� ASuariums� anF <oos in 
EonserXation anF the Australian 5eeFbanM 
2artnershiRs Germination &atabase� 

A total oH ��� RubliE enSuires were answereF 
FurinI the year FealinI with issues inEluFinI 
Rlant iFentifiEation anF Rlant health� 

5iZ 2lant 'ZEhanIes were HaEilitateF between the 
RTBG anF eZternal orIanisations� This inEluFeF 
RroXiFinI material to Xarious institutions Hor 
researEh RurRoses� A maLor eZEhanIe inXolXeF 
the Fonation oH ��|Libocedrus Rlants to GeelonI 
BotaniE GarFens Hor the new 2aEifiE Rim BotaniE 
GarFen� This Eontributes to the EonserXation anF 
eFuEation oH GonFwanan ƃora anF enables the 
RTBG to sRreaF our metaEolleEtion anF inErease 
the lonI�term seEurity oH the EolleEtion� 

Conservation

The RTBG suRRorts seXeral RroLeEts on 
threateneF Tasmanian ƃora anF has seXeral 
EonserXation EolleEtions that are imRortant Hor 
sEienEe anF researEh� 1nIoinI Eontribution to 
the 0R/ 5outh�.anFsEaRe ReEoXery RroLeEt 
saw the nursery RroFuEe oXer ��� Eucalyptus 
morrisbyi Rlants Hrom seeF storeF at the 
Tasmanian 5eeF %onserXation %entre (T5%%�� 

The RTBG nursery Eurrently maintains eiIht 
seeF orEharFs to RroXiFe seeF to the T5%%� 
RroXiFinI a total oH ������� seeFs Hrom siZ oH the 
seeF orEharFs� 2ermission was IranteF by the 
0R' Tas ThreateneF 5ReEies anF 2riXate .anF 
%onserXation 5eEtion to EolleEt XeIetatiXe Rlant 
material Hrom Hour sites oH 2olysEias sR� &ouIlas�
&enison whiEh� when EombineF with our eZistinI 
material� will enable researEh into a Huture seeF 
orEharF Hor this enFanIereF enFemiE� 

5oil samRles EolleEteF by 0R' Hrom the wilF 
Lomatia tasmanica RoRulations in the west oH the 
state were useF to analyse the EomRosition oH 
soil anF Fetermine any RresenEe oH Phytopthora 
cinnamomi� TestinI RroXiFeF neIatiXe results Hor 
this RathoIen� This testinI will assist the RTBG 
in our onIoinI RroIram oH IrowinI Lomatia 
tasmanica�

7RIraFes to the 5ub AntarEtiE *ouse inEluFeF a 
new reHriIerateF IrowinI HaEility Hor the nursery 
Rlant EolleEtion� AFFitional to this was the neeF 
to reRlaEe the 5ub AntarEtiE *ouse Ehiller anF 
Han� resultinI in the FisRlay house beinI EloseF 
to the RubliE between &eEember ���� anF 
ARril �����

TeEhniEal inRut was RroXiFeF on the 0ational 
AEtion 2lan Hor Tree anF Timber 2ests� the (ire 
Resistant 2lants BroEhure (Tasmania (ire 5erXiEe�� 
the +7%0 55% 2osition 5tatement on the Role 
oH BotaniE GarFens� ASuariums� anF <oos in 
EonserXation anF the Australian 5eeFbanM 
2artnershiRs Germination &atabase� 

A total oH ��� RubliE enSuires were answereF 
FurinI the year FealinI with issues inEluFinI 
Rlant iFentifiEation anF Rlant health� 

5iZ 2lant 'ZEhanIes were HaEilitateF between the 
RTBG anF eZternal orIanisations� This inEluFeF 
RroXiFinI material to Xarious institutions Hor 
researEh RurRoses� A maLor eZEhanIe inXolXeF 

 Rlants to GeelonI 
BotaniE GarFens Hor the new 2aEifiE Rim BotaniE 
GarFen� This Eontributes to the EonserXation anF 

109
Public enquiries answered
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COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS
Visitor Services and Tours

+n �������� the GarFens reEeiXeF a total oH �������
Xisitors� These numbers reRresent a �� inErease 
on the RreXious year� 1ur 8isitor 5erXiEes team 
Eontinues to RroXiFe a hiIh leXel oH Eustomer 
serXiEe to these Xisitors throuIh our inHormation 
Roints at The *ub anF the BotaniEal 5hoR�

1ur tours RroIram was Xery RoRular� with oXer 
����� Xisitors aEEessinI our inHormatiXe tour 
eZRerienEes� An aFFitional ����� Iuests XisiteF 
the site on EoaEh tours� aEEessinI a meet anF 
Ireet serXiEe Hrom our 8isitor 5erXiEes team�

Marketing and Promotion

The GarFenso Xisitor eZEellenEe Eontinues to 
attraEt inFustry reEoInition� +n 0oXember ���� 
the GarFens tooM out the silXer awarF Hor /aLor 
Tourist AttraEtion at the Tasmanian Tourism 
AwarFs� This RositiXe branFinI was Hurther 
RromoteF throuIh a ranIe oH aFXertisinI anF 
eFitorial oRRortunities throuIhout the year� 
A new XiFeo EamRaiIn was rolleF out to the 
*obart AirRort in /arEh ���� to boost the tourist 
Rrofile oH the GarFens� 

%ommunity aEtiXation� eFuEation anF branF 
awareness were harnesseF throuIh soEial meFia 
EamRaiIns aEross the year� to an auFienEe oH 
oXer ������ Hollowers on (aEebooM� ReIular 
newsletters were FistributeF to ����� subsEribers 
Suarterly with uRFates oH aEtiXities� eXents anF 
EonserXation RroLeEts at the GarFens� ThrouIh the
RartnershiR with Business 'Xents Tasmania� RTBG 
hosteF a suEEessHul Business 'Xents Australia 
nHamilo in the %onserXatory in AuIust �����

As Rart oH the Rromotional aEtiXities� a broEhure 
was FistributeF to tourist Roints inEluFinI the 
Tasmanian TraXel anF +nHormation %entre anF 
%ruise 5hiR arriXals� The stronI branF reRutation 
with interstate Xisitation was reEoIniseF by 

the �� ratinI on the RoRular TriR AFXisor RaIe 
nThinIs to Fo in *obarto Hor the RerioF oH the 
������� finanEial year�

Event Management and Venue Hire

The 'Xents team oXersees a ranIe oH onsite 
meetinIs� EorRorate hires anF maLor eXents� with 
tens oH thousanFs oH ReoRle XisitinI the GarFens 
aEross these eXents� 9ith three FeFiEateF inFoor 
meetinI Xenues anF many stunninI outFoor 
loEations to Ehoose Hrom� eXent anF Xenue hire 
Eontinues to attraEt IrowinI enSuiries� 

/aLor eXents at the GarFens in ������� inEluFeF�

> By the % musiE EonEert

> 5ummer5alt musiE EonEerts 

> Tasmanian 9ine (estiXal

> ReF *ot 5ummer (estiXal

> &ay on the .awn

> 8ariety %arols by %anFleliIht

> 5haMesReare in the GarFens

> BiI /onMey Theatreos Robin *ooF�

9eFFinIs anF EorRorate eXents were also 
RromoteF wiFely� anF these booMinIs inEreaseF 
in �������� The %onserXatory was one oH the main 
weFFinI Festinations booMeF at the GarFens�

Rrofile oH the GarFens� 

RTBG staff Leesa Butler, David Reid and 
Ben Jager supporting a major concert.

2,300
visitors participated in tours
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Volunteers

The GarFens is suRRorteF by a team oH 
FeFiEateF Xolunteers who Ienerously IiXe 
their time to assist with our EonserXation worM� 
enIaIe our Xisitors� anF suRRort our EommerEial 
oRerations�|&urinI �������� �� Xolunteers tooM 
Rart in IrouRs anF aEtiXities at the GarFens� 
%olleEtiXely they EontributeF a total oH ����� 
hours to our orIanisation� worMinI in the 
HollowinI areas� 

> The Tasmanian %ommunity (ooF GarFen

> BeIonia RroRaIation anF Eare

> 0ursery GrowinI GrouRs

> The Tasmanian 5eeF %onserXation %entre

> 8isitor meet anF Ireet at the /ain 'ntranEe

> BuIIy tours Hor Xisitors

> The annual Tomato 5ale &ay�

1ur Xolunteers were EelebrateF at an eXent in 
the %onserXatory in /ay ���� to EoinEiFe with 
0ational 8olunteer 9eeM� 

Media Liaison

RTBG staHH were reIular Eontent RroXiFers Hor 
AB% RaFio *obart anF AB%os Gardening Australia
teleXision RroIram� The /arMetinI /anaIer anF 
*ortiEulture staHH worMeF with Lournalists anF 
RhotoIraRhers to RroXiFe sReEialist inHormation 
Hor artiEles throuIhout the year�

Commercial Partnerships

The HooF anF beXeraIe oRerations at RTBG are 
EonFuEteF by a liEenEe holFer s .eeHrais 2ty .tF 
traFinI as 5uEEulent Restaurant anF oRerateF 
by ,ohann anF Ginny (rais� This business has 
worMeF in RartnershiR with RTBG to attraEt 
Finers anF RroXiFe a Eonsistent Suality oHHerinI 
all year rounF� They RroXiFe our Xisitors with 
a RlaEe to Fine� as well as taMeaway oRtions 
at 5Rrout TaMeaway anF onsite EaterinI Hor 
EorRorate meetinIs anF eXents� 
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Retail – the Botanical Shop

The BotaniEal 5hoR Eontinues to HoEus on 
stoEMinI a ranIe oH loEally maFe anF sustainable 
IiHtware as well as a ranIe oH IarFen eSuiRment� 
seeFs anF booMs� The shoR is well HreSuenteF by 
loEals anF tourists who aRRreEiate the seleEtion 
oH botaniEal items anF Suality RroFuEts�
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PUBLIC DONATIONS
The RTBG recognises the importance of access to the Gardens to the Tasmanian community. 
The degree of ongoing community support is evident in the level of donations made at 
various collection points located throughout the RTBG and through sponsorship programs 
for memorial seats and trees.

22 | RTBG | Annual Report 2022-23



Donate to The Gardens and make a lasting difference

YOUR GIFT
HELPS US TO GROW

OR DONATE WHEN 
YOU VISIT US NEXT
- Contribute with cash next time you visit us, look out 

for our nifty Donation Boxes or chat with our volunteers 
at The Hub.

- Make use of our secure new Tap-And-Go donation 
facility just inside the main entrance at The Gardens. 

- Purchase our recent historical publication ‘The Gardens’, 
buy some RTBG honey (we were the first in Australia to 
produce honey!) or some limited edition botanical gin, 
distilled with ingredients from the Gardens.

SAY HELLO
Oct – Apr Opening Hours: 8.00am – 6.30pm

May – Sept Opening Hours 8.00am – 5.00pm

Visitor Enquiries: 03 6166 0451
Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens
Queens Domain Hobart

For more information about what 
we can achieve with your generous 
donation, visit the Visitor Hub, 
the Botanical Shop or visit:

rtbg.tas.gov.au

9e are IrateHul Hor the suRRort that we reEeiXe 
throuIh Fonations� HunFraisinI anF RhilanthroRy� 
as they Eontribute to the onIoinI FeXeloRment 
worMs anF EonserXation oH the GarFens� 
These HunFs are reEeiXeF throuIh a Xariety 
oH sourEes� inEluFinI FireEt Fonations at the 
GarFens� beSuests Hrom FeEeaseF estates� tree 
sRonsorshiR anF seat sRonsorshiR� 

2022–23 SPONSORS (OVER $200)
9e IrateHully aEMnowleFIe the sRonsors listeF below as well as Ienerous anonymous Fonors�

Australian 2lant 5oEiety����������������������������������,000 ������������������������� General &onation
'li\abeth %hen ���������������������������������������������������������������������������� General &onation
'state oH %hristoRher Thomas &wyer ����������� ������������������������������� General &onation
%heryl *isloR ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
RonalF RiIby ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
Thomas 2rentiEe�������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
.ate &ot *olstrom����������������������������������������� ������������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
5abine Teubner���������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
RiEharF 9hitaMer ������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
5tuart %lutterbuEM ����������������������������������������� ������������������������������� General &onation
&iane /atthews �������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
/arinelle Basson ������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� General &onation
Tory Ross�������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
1lIa 2oFusMoXa ����������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� General &onation
.iHeline �������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
Robert GillesRie������������������������������������������������ ����������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
'Xa /a\ureM ����������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
Anne GearF � .ynFall Ayres ���������������������������� ����������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
%amellia 5oEiety Tas����������������������������������������� ����������������������������� General &onation
,ohn 5teXens ���������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� General &onation
5usan .ewin ������������������������������������������������������ ����������������������������� General &onation
9enFy 9hitham����������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� General &onation
9enFy 9hitham����������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� 5eat 5RonsorshiR
Rotary %lub oH 5alamanEa �������������������������������� ����������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
/elissa %atto���������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
*elena AFFison������������������������������������������������ ����������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR
%harlene 9hite������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� Tree 5RonsorshiR

GIVING PROGRAM

$115,474
raised through public donations
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The Friends of the 
Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 

The (rienFs oH the RTBG are an enthusiastiE 
networM who IiXe their time to suRRort the 
worM oH the RTBG� /embers enLoy the HellowshiR 
anF inXolXement in a ranIe oH aEtiXities FireEtly 
anF inFireEtly linMeF to the GarFens� The 
Suarterly Fagus RubliEation is RroFuEeF 
anF FistributeF by the (rienFs oH the RTBG� 
aFFinI EonsiFerable Xalue to the storytellinI 
oH RroIrams at the GarFens�

Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre (TSCC) 

Royal Botanic Gardens Kew, Australian Seed 
Bank Partnership, Tasmanian Herbarium 
(TMAG), Department of Natural Resources 
and Environment Tasmania (NRE Tas)

The RTBG wishes to aEMnowleFIe anF thanM 
our Loint Rartners in this maLor EonserXation 
initiatiXe� The worM oH the T5%% RroXiFes a 
EritiEal insuranEe RoliEy Hor Tasmanian ƃora into 
the Huture� The T5%% is esReEially IrateHul Hor the 
FeFiEateF worM oH the seeFbanM Xolunteers�

The Tasmanian Orchid Conservation 
and Research Program 

The 2artnershiR AIreement between the 
.anFsEaRe ReEoXery (ounFation anF the RTBG� 
HoEusinI on the Tasmanian 1rEhiF %onserXation 
anF ResearEh 2roIram (T1%R2�� Eontinues to 
RroFuEe imRortant results in orEhiF EonserXation� 
The T1%R2� whiEh is hosteF by the Tasmanian 
5eeF %onserXation %entre (T5%%�� aims to 
imRroXe the EonserXation status oH Tasmanian 
threateneF orEhiFs throuIh the imRlementation 
oH eZ situ reEoXery aEtions iFentifieF in the 
HeFeral Tasmanian Threatened Orchid Flora 
Recovery Plan�

Australian Plants Society

The RTBG woulF liMe to aEMnowleFIe the 
Australian 2lants 5oEiety Tasmanian BranEh Hor 
its onIoinI suRRort to the T5%% fielF EolleEtinI 
RroIrams anF to the seeF orEharF RroFuEtion 
at the 9inFsor 2arM 0ursery�

Australian Antarctic Division and 
Tasmania Parks and Wildlife Service

The RTBG aEMnowleFIes the Australian 
AntarEtiE &iXision anF the Tasmania 2arMs anF 
9ilFliHe 5erXiEe Hor their onIoinI suRRort oH 
the eZ situ EonserXation EolleEtion anF seeF 
orEharF oH the /aESuarie +slanF %ushion 2lant 
(Azorella macquariensis�� 

OUR SUPPORTERS AND PARTNERS

The RTBG would like to acknowledge the generous assistance of government, industry 
and community partners who continue to give invaluable financial and non-financial 
support to the Gardens. We thank the following organisations and individuals for their 
support and collaboration with the following projects:

the Huture� The T5%% is esReEially IrateHul Hor the 

.anFsEaRe ReEoXery (ounFation anF the RTBG� 
HoEusinI on the Tasmanian 1rEhiF %onserXation 

RroFuEe imRortant results in orEhiF EonserXation� 

threateneF orEhiFs throuIh the imRlementation 
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Department of Justice – Corrective Services 
Labour and Training Program

The lonIstanFinI %orreEtiXe 5erXiEes labour 
anF traininI RartnershiR RroIram between the 
RTBG anF the &eRartment oH ,ustiEe Eontinues 
to RroXiFe inXaluable suRRort to the uRMeeR oH 
the botaniEal estate while RroXiFinI imRortant 
eFuEational anF re�soEialisation oRRortunities Hor 
the RroIramos RartiEiRants� 

Neutrog

9e woulF liMe to aEMnowleFIe the onIoinI 
suRRort RroXiFeF by 0eutroI Australia 2ty .tF� 
This RartnershiR RroXiFes Ireat benefits to the 
GarFens throuIh the Ienerous suRRly oH hiIh�
Suality Rlant nutrition RroFuEts�

Department of Justice – Corrective Services 

The lonIstanFinI %orreEtiXe 5erXiEes labour 
anF traininI RartnershiR RroIram between the 
RTBG anF the &eRartment oH ,ustiEe Eontinues 
to RroXiFe inXaluable suRRort to the uRMeeR oH 
the botaniEal estate while RroXiFinI imRortant 
eFuEational anF re�soEialisation oRRortunities Hor 

9e woulF liMe to aEMnowleFIe the onIoinI 
suRRort RroXiFeF by 0eutroI Australia 2ty .tF� 
This RartnershiR RroXiFes Ireat benefits to the 
GarFens throuIh the Ienerous suRRly oH hiIh�
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EXECUTIVE

Director
;ann GaInon

BUSINESS SERVICES

Manager, Business Services
&aXiF *unt

Business Services Assistants
,ill 'astley
5harron 2aul

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS

Manager, Commercial Operations
,oseRh 2iEMett

Events and Engagement Officer
5usan ,aEMson

Visitor Experience Coordinator
'sther BeeEroHt

Retail Services Officer
,aEMalyn &arEy

Visitor Services Officers
Reyne BoZhall
%atherine %haRman 
-ate %rossin
.es 9insRear

GARDEN OPERATIONS

Manager, Garden Operations
&aXiF ReiF

Curators
%hris .anI
Lorraine Perrins

Horticultural Team Leaders
Anne GriHfin 
&aXiF /arrison

Horticulturists
&aXiF 'aXes
2aul *ohler
AFam .anEaster 
Megan Marrison
,eremy 2atterson
-athryn 5aunFers
/arIot 9hite

Horticultural Assistants
8ito /aEolino
.iam 9hite

Horticultural Labourers
5Eott /aher
,aEMson 9est Bennett

Botanical Estate Team Leader
,ames ;ounI

Estate Assistant 
,eremy Robinson

STAFF LIST AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

Katrina Oakley, Jackson West Bennet, Chris Lang, 
Vito Macolino, Esther Beecroft, Jeremy Robinson, 
Susan Jackson, Laim White, David Reid, Ben Jager, 
Laura Williams, David Marrison, James Young, Travis Price, 
David Hunt, Kathryn Saunders, Adam Lancaster, 
James Wood, Joseph Pickett, Yann Gagnon

From left to right: 
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Assets and Infrastructure 
Team Leader
Ben ,aIer

Utility Officer
Graeme 5tyles

Cleaners
Antony /oroni
5teRhen Ross

BOTANICAL RESOURCES

Horticultural Botanist
.aura 9illiams

TASMANIAN SEED 
CONSERVATION CENTRE

Seedbank Coordinator
,ames 9ooF

Absent: Anne Grffin, Antony Moroni, Catherine Chapman, David Eaves, Graeme Styles, Jackalyn Darcy, Jeremy Patterson, 
Kate Crossin, Les Winspear, Margot White, Megan Marrison, Paul Hohler, Reyne Boxhall, Scott Maher, Stephen Ross
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

1

I ndep endent Auditor’ s R ep ort

T o the M em b ers of P arliam ent

R oy al T asm anian B otanic al Gardens

R ep ort on the Audit of the F inanc ial S tatem ents

O p inion

I have audited the financial statements of the R oyal Tasmanian Botanical G ardens ( the 
G ardens) , which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 J une 2023 and 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then 
ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies, other explanatory notes and the statement of certification signed by the Director 
and C hair of the Board ( the Director and the Board) .

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

( a) present fairly, in all material respects, the G ardens’ financial position as at 30 J une 
2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended

( b) are in accordance with the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002, the 
Financial Management Act 2016 and Australian Accounting Standards.

B asis for O p inion

I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. M y responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Au ditor’ s Resp onsib ilities for the Au dit of 
the Financial S tatements section of my report. I am independent of the G ardens in 
accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting P rofessional and E thical 
Standards Board’s AP E S 1 1 0 C ode of E thics for P rofessional Accou ntants ( inclu ding 
I ndep endence S tandards) ( the C ode)  that are relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the C ode.

The Au dit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor- G eneral. The Auditor-
G eneral is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by 
P arliament. The Auditor- G eneral may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate 
and is not subj ect to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be 
exercised. The Auditor- G eneral has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all 
documents and property and can report to P arliament matters which in the Auditor-
G eneral’s opinion are significant.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

1

I ndep endent Auditor’ s R ep ort

T o the M em b ers of P arliam ent

R oy al T asm anian B otanic al Gardens

R ep ort on the Audit of the F inanc ial S tatem ents
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I have audited the financial statements of the R oyal Tasmanian Botanical G ardens ( the 
G ardens) , which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 J une 2023 and 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then 
ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies, other explanatory notes and the statement of certification signed by the Director 
and C hair of the Board ( the Director and the Board) .

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

( a) present fairly, in all material respects, the G ardens’ financial position as at 30 J une 
2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended

( b) are in accordance with the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002, the 
Financial Management Act 2016 and Australian Accounting Standards.

B asis for O p inion

I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. M y responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Au ditor’ s Resp onsib ilities for the Au dit of 
the Financial S tatements section of my report. I am independent of the G ardens in 
accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting P rofessional and E thical 
Standards Board’s AP E S 1 1 0 C ode of E thics for P rofessional Accou ntants ( inclu ding 
I ndep endence S tandards) ( the C ode)  that are relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the C ode.

The Au dit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor- G eneral. The Auditor-
G eneral is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by 
P arliament. The Auditor- G eneral may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate 
and is not subj ect to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be 
exercised. The Auditor- G eneral has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all 
documents and property and can report to P arliament matters which in the Auditor-
G eneral’s opinion are significant.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 
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2

M y audit is not designed to provide assurance on the accuracy and appropriateness of the 
budget information in the G ardens’ financial statements.

K ey  Audit M atters

K ey audit matters are those matters that, in my professional j udgement, were of most 
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

W hy  this m atter is c onsidered to b e one of 
the m ost signific ant m atters in the audit

Audit p roc edures to address the m atter 
inc luded

V aluation of p rop erty  and infrastruc ture 
Refer to note 6.4 and 6.6

At 30 J une 2023, the G ardens had land, 
buildings and infrastructure assets totalling 
$ 20.57 million recognised at fair value. 

Independent valuations are carried on a 
regular basis and between valuations, 
carrying values are updated using 
independently provided indices. For the 
year ended 30 J une 2023, indices have been 
applied to land and buildings. A formal 
revaluation has been performed for 
infrastructure assets.

In determining fair values, the G ardens 
utilises a valuation model appropriate to the 
type of assets involved. This requires 
significant j udgement, with the different 
valuation models highly dependent upon a 
range of inputs, assumptions and estimates. 
For these reasons, the valuation of these 
assets is an area requiring particular audit 
attention.

• Assessing the scope, expertise and 
independence of experts engaged to 
assist in the valuation.

• E valuating the appropriateness of the 
valuation methodology applied to 
determine the fair values.

• Testing, on a sample basis, the 
mathematical accuracy of the 
indexation calculations.

• R eviewing the accuracy of recording 
valuations in the G arden’s asset register 
and general ledger.

• E valuating the adequacy of relevant 
disclosures in the financial statements, 
including those regarding key 
assumptions used.

R esp onsib ilities of the Direc tor and the B oard for the F inanc ial S tatem ents

The Director and the Board are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial 
reporting requirements of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002 and Section 
42 ( 1 )  of the Financial Management Act 2016. This responsibility includes such internal 
control as determined necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT)

3

In preparing the financial statements, the Director and the Board are responsible for 
assessing the G ardens’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
G ardens is to be dissolved by an Act of P arliament, or the Director and the Board intend to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’ s R esp onsib ilities for the Audit of the F inanc ial S tatem ents

M y obj ectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. R easonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. M isstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional j udgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the G ardens’ internal control. 

• E valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Director and the Board. 

• C onclude on the appropriateness of the Director and the Board’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the G ardens’ ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify my opinion. M y conclusion is based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the G ardens to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• E valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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4

I communicate with the Director and the Board regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

From the matters communicated with the Director and the Board, I determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

David Bond
Assistant Auditor-General

Delegate of the Auditor-General
Tasmanian Audit Office

25 September 2023
Hobart 
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STATEMENT OF CERTIFICATION

3

RO Y A L  TA SM A N I A N  B O TA N I CA L  G A RD EN S

Statement of Certification

The accompanying Financial Statements of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens are in agreement with the 
relevant accounts and records and have been prepared in compliance with the Treasurer’s Instructions issued 
under the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2016, the Royal Botanical Gardens Act 2002 and Australian 
Accounting Standards, to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ended 30 June 20 23 and the financial 
position as at the end of the year.

At the date of signing, I am not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the 
Financial Statements misleading or inaccurate.

Y ann G agnon K ath ryn M cCann
D irector Chair
Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Board

D ated              25 th day of September 20 23
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ROYAL TASMANIAN BOTANICAL GARDENS

N otes 2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$

I ncome from continuing operations

Revenue from Government

Appropriation revenue - operating 3.1 3 6 0 5 0 0 0 3 6 41 0 0 0 3 5 0 3 0 0 0

Appropriation revenue - capital 3.1 ... … 6 0 0 0 0

Grants and fundraising 3.2 221 0 0 0 25 1 0 5 8 9 6 21 7

Sales of goods and services 3.3 8 42 0 0 0 8 48 278 5 9 0 9 44

Interest 3.4 20 0 0 0 21 5 6 38 27 9 8 8

Rents received 3.5 1 25 0 0 0 1 29 40 1 72 0 0 0

Contributions received 3.6 … 1 1 3 0 1 9 44 378

Other revenue 3.7 5 0 0 0 5 5 9 44 7 735

Total  revenue continuing from operations 4 818 000 5 2 54 338 4 4 02 2 62

Net gain/ (loss) on non- financial assets 4.1 ... 2 727 1 0 0 0 0

Other gain/ (loss) on change in estimate of 
non- financial assets 4.2 ... (474 238 ) (8 7 444)

Total  income from continuing operations 4 818 000 4 782 82 7 4 32 4 818

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits 5 .1 3 1 5 9 0 0 0 2 9 9 6 8 79 2 5 1 4 9 5 4

D epreciation and amortisation 5 .2 49 0 0 0 0 5 45 8 6 7 5 1 3 8 5 4

Cost of goods sold 25 7 30 0 321 6 28 20 3 31 4

Supplies and consumables 5 .3 1 5 76 1 0 0 1 45 4 5 22 1 0 8 1 36 9

Other expenses 5 .4 39 6 0 0 1 44 1 76 8 2 30 8

Total  expenses from continuing operations 5 52 2 000 5 4 63 072 4 395 799

N et resul t from continuing operations ( 704 000) ( 680 2 4 5) ( 70 981)

N et resul t ( 704 000) ( 680 2 4 5) ( 70 981)

O th er c o mpreh en s iv e in c o me

Changes in property, plant and equipment 
revaluation surplus 9 .1 ... 4 446 31 6 1 49 5 335

Total  oth er compreh ensive income … 4 4 4 6 316 1 4 95 335

Compreh ensive resul t ( 704 000) 3 766 071 1 4 2 4 354

Th is Statement of C ompreh ensive Income sh ould b e read in conj unction with  th e accompanying notes.  
Budget information refers to original estimates and h as not b een sub j ect to audit.  

E x planations of material variances b etween b udget and actual outcomes are provided in N ote 1 of th e accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

ROYAL TASMANIAN BOTANICAL GARDENS

A ssets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents      1 0 .1 6 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 1 49 6 6 3 1 0 5 0 0 32

Receivables 6 .1 76 0 0 0 9 0 9 5 0 1 9 328

Other financial assets 6 .2 ... 7 0 38 78 5 7 0 9 4 48 5

N on- financial assets

Inventories 6 .3 9 0 0 0 0 8 4 76 1 9 0 5 28

P roperty, plant and equipment 6 .4 1 2 35 8 0 0 0 1 5 5 43 0 6 0 1 3 1 8 2 0 0 7

Right- of-of-of use assets 6 .5 ... 1 0 3 31 4 1 37 39 3

Infrastructure 6 .6 3 9 0 0 0 0 0 5 8 73 0 1 9 4 46 6 8 37

Other assets 6 .7 1 0 6 0 0 0 5 2 6 1 7 48 275

Total  assets 2 3 52 2 000 2 9 936 169 2 6 088 885

L iab il ities

P ayables 7.1 1 0 5 0 0 0 20 6 0 0 9 38 29 4

L ease liabilities 7.2 ... 9 9 5 0 2 1 30 721

Employee benefit liabilities 7.3 75 8 0 0 0 6 8 1 9 6 8 6 8 0 46 4

Other liabilities 7.4 1 75 0 0 0 39 9 1 4 9 6 70 1

Total  l iab il ities 1 038 000 1 02 7 393 94 6 180

N et assets 2 2 4 84 000 2 8 908 776 2 5 14 2 705

Eq uity

Reserve 9 .1 1 7 49 4 0 0 0 23 436 0 71 1 8 9 8 9 75 5

Accumulated funds 4 9 9 0 0 0 0 5 472 70 5   6 1 5 2 9 5 0

Total  eq uity 2 2 4 84 000 2 8 908 776 2 5 14 2 705

Th is Statement of Financial P osition sh ould b e read in conj unction with  th e accompanying notes.
Budget information refers to original estimates and h as not b een sub j ect to audit.  
E x planations of material variances b etween b udget and actual outcomes are provided in N ote 1 of th e accompanying notes.

N otes 2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ROYAL TASMANIAN BOTANICAL GARDENS

Cash  fl ow s from operating activities

C ash  inflows

Appropriation receipts – operating 3 6 0 5 0 0 0 3 6 41 0 0 0 3 5 0 3 0 0 0

Appropriation receipts – capital … … 6 0 0 0 0

Grants and fundraising 221 0 0 0 1 8 6 9 8 4 1 5 3 0 0 6

Sales of goods and services 8 42 0 0 0 8 5 2 6 42 5 8 7 431

GST receipts 1 8 6 0 0 0 1 74 1 0 7 1 45 6 41

Interest received 20 0 0 0 1 5 0 9 77 24 0 78

Rents received 1 25 0 0 0 1 27 0 41 72 0 0 0

Other cash receipts 5 0 0 0 5 4 378 8 45 1

Total  cash  infl ow s 5 004 000 5 187 12 9 4 553 607

C ash  outflows

Employee benefits (3 1 5 9 0 0 0 ) (2 9 9 5 375 ) (2 5 6 3 48 8 )

GST payments (1 8 6 0 0 0 ) (1 74 1 0 7) (1 45 6 41 )

Interest payments … (3 0 5 5 ) …

Cost of goods sold (25 7 30 0 ) (31 5 8 6 1 ) (20 3 8 6 8 )

Supplies and consumables (1 5 76 1 0 0 ) (1 29 1 28 7) (1 1 6 0 9 42)

Other cash payments (39 6 0 0 ) (28 0 76 ) (37 773)

Total  cash  outfl ow s ( 5 2 18 000) ( 4 807 761) ( 4  111 712 )

N et cash  from /  ( used b y)  operating activities 1 0 .2 ( 2 14 000) 379 368 4 4 1 895

Cash  fl ow s from investing activities

C ash  inflows

P roceeds from investments … 5 5 70 0 …

P roceeds from disposal of non- financial assets … 2 727 …

Total  cash  infl ow s ... 58 4 2 7 …

C ash  outflows

P ayments for acquisition of non- financial assets (30 0 0 0 0 ) (30 6 9 45 ) (1 5 4 6 70 )

Transfer to other financial assets … … (7 0 9 4 48 5 )

Total  cash  outfl ow s ( 300 000) ( 306 94 5) ( 7 2 4 9 155)

N et cash  from /  ( used b y)  investing activities ( 300 000) ( 2 4 8 518) ( 7 2 4 9 155)

N otes 2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$
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Cash  fl ow s from financing activities

C ash  outflows

Repayment of lease liabilities (excluding interest) ... (31 21 9 ) (26 20 9 )

Total  cash  outfl ow s ... ( 31 2 19) ( 2 6 2 09)

N et Cash  from /  ( used b y)  financing activities ... ( 31 2 19) ( 2 6 2 09)

N et increase /  ( decrease)  in cash  and cash  
eq uival ents h el d ( 514 000) 99 631 ( 6 833 4 69)

Cash  and cash  eq uival ents at th e b eginning 
of th e reporting period 7 506 000 1 050 032 7 883 501

Cash  and cash  eq uival ents at th e end of th e 
reporting period 1 0 .1 6 992 000 1 14 9 663 1 050 032

Th is Statement of C ash  Flows sh ould b e read in conj unction with  th e accompanying notes.
Budget information refers to original estimates and h as not b een sub j ect to audit.
E x planations of material variances b etween b udget and actual outcomes are provided in N ote 1 of th e accompanying notes.

N otes 2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$

Annual Report Financials 2022-23 RTBG | 37



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ROYAL TASMANIAN BOTANICAL GARDENS

B al ance as at 1 Jul y 2 02 2 6 152 950 18 989 755 2 5 14 2 705

Net result (6 8 0 245 ) … (6 8 0 245 )

Other comprehensive income 9 .1 … 4 446 31 6 4 446 31 6

B al ance as at 30 June 2 02 3 5 4 72 705 2 3 4 36 071 2 8 908 776

B al ance as at 1 Jul y 2 02 1 6 2 2 3 931 17 4 94 4 2 0 2 3 718 351

Net result (70 9 8 1 ) … (70 9 8 1 )

Other comprehensive income 9 .1 … 1 49 5 335 1 49 5 335

B al ance as at 30 June 2 02 2 6 152 950 18 989 755 2 5 14 2 705

Th is Statement of C h anges in E q uity sh ould b e read in conj unction with  th e accompanying notes.

N otes A ccumul ated 
F unds

A sset 
Reval uation 

Reserve

Total  Eq uity

$ $ $
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N ote 1:  Expl anations of material  variances b etw een b udget and actual  outcomes

1.1 Statement of Compreh ensive I ncome

Statement of Comprehensive Income variances are considered material where the variance exceeds 1 0 per cent 
of the original budget estimate and $ 70 0 0 0 . Budget information refers to original estimates as disclosed in the 
20 22- 23 Budget P apers and is not subject to audit.

I ncome from continuing operations

Interest received (a) 20 0 0 0 21 5 6 38 1 9 5 6 38 9 78

Contributions received (b) … 1 1 3 0 1 9 1 1 3 0 1 9 1 0 0

Other gain/ (loss) on change in estimate of 
non‑financial assets (c) … (474 238 ) (474 238 ) (1 0 0 )

Expenses from continuing operations

Other expenses (d) 39 6 0 0 1 44 1 76 1 0 4 5 76 26 4

O th er compreh ensive income

Changes in property, plant and equipment 
revaluation surplus (e) … 4 446 31 6 4 446 31 6 1 0 0

(a) The increase in interest received is due to the impact of rising interest rates on funds held in fixed term 
deposits.

(b) The RTBG does not budget for contributions received. In 20 22- 23, contributions received comprises 
of the fair value of volunteer services received and the waiving of the 20 23 Service L evel Agreement 
(SL A) fee with the D epartment of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania (NRE Tas).

(c) The RTBG does not budget for other gain/ (loss) on change in estimate of non- financial assets. The 
loss on change in estimate of non- financial assets is mainly due to the write downs of infrastructure
assets.

(d) The budget for other expenses does not include the $ 5 0 0 0 0  waiver of the 20 23 SL A fee with NRE
Tas.

(e) The increase in the asset revaluation reserve reflects the application of indexation to the land and 
building assets categories and the revaluation of the infrastructure asset categories in 20 22- 23. 

N otes to Statement of Compreh ensive I ncome variances

N otes B udget

$

A ctual

$

V ariance

$

V ariance

%
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1.2  Statement of F inancial  P osition

Statement of Financial P osition variances are considered material where the variance exceeds 1 0 per cent of the 
original budget estimate and $ 70 0 0 0 . Budget information refers to original estimates as disclosed in the 20 22- 23 
Budget P apers and is not subject to audit.

A ssets

Cash and cash 
equivalents (a) 6 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 1 49 6 6 3 1 0 5 0 0 32 (5 8 42 337) 9 9 6 31

Other financial assets (a) … 7 0 38 78 5 7 0 9 4 48 5 7 0 38 78 5 (5 5 70 0 )

P roperty, plant and 
equipment (b) 1 2 35 8 0 0 0 1 5 5 43 0 6 0 1 3 1 8 2 0 0 7 3 1 8 5 0 6 0 2 36 1 0 5 3

Right- of-of-of use assets (c) … 1 0 3 31 4 1 37 39 3 1 0 3 31 4 (34 0 79 )

Infrastructure (d) 3 9 0 0 0 0 0  5 8 73 0 1 9  4 46 6 8 37 1 9 73 0 1 9 1 40 6 1 8 21

L iab il ities

P ayables (e) 1 0 5 0 0 0 20 6 0 0 9 38 29 4 1 0 1 0 0 9 1 6 7 71 5

L ease liabilities (c) … 9 9 5 0 2 1 30 721 9 9 5 0 2 (31 21 9 )

Other liabilities (f) 1 75 0 0 0 39 9 1 4 9 6 70 1 (1 35 0 8 6 ) (5 6 78 7)

N otes to Statement of F inancial  P osition variances

(a) The change in cash and cash equivalents and Other financial assets reflects the New V isitor Centre 
funds being held in a longer maturity term deposit.

(b) The increase in property, plant and equipment primarily reflects the application of indexation to the land 
and building asset categories in 20 22- 23.

(c) The RTBG does not budget for these items. The balance relates to several equipment leases.

(d) The increase in infrastructure assets reflects the revaluation performed in 20 22- 23.

(e) The increase in payables reflects building, infrastructure and project work performed in 2022-23 and paid 
in 2023-24.

(f) The decrease in other liabilities reflects the completion of grant milestones related to Seedbank research 
and the transfer of responsibility for grants and associated funds relating to the Tasmanian Orchid 
Conservation and Research P rogram to an external party.

N otes B udget

$

2 02 3 
A ctual

$

2 02 2  
A ctual

$

B udget 
V ariance

$

A ctual  
V ariance

$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

1.3 Statement of Cash  F l ow s 

Statement of Cash Flows variances are considered material where the variance exceeds 1 0 per cent of the original 
budget estimate and $ 70 0 0 0 . Budget information refers to original estimates as disclosed in the 20 22- 23 Budget 
P apers and is not subject to audit.

N otes to Statement of Cash  F l ow s variances

Cash  fl ow s from operating activities

C ash  inflows

Interest received (a) 20 0 0 0 1 5 0 9 77 1 30 9 77 6 5 5

C ash  outflows

Supplies and consumables (b) (1 5 76 1 0 0 ) (1 29 1 28 7) 28 4 8 1 3 (1 8 )

(a) The increase in interest received is due to the impact of rising interest rates on funds held in fixed term 
deposits.

(b) The decrease in supplies and consumables is primarily due to the delay in the delivery of the Strategic 
Conservation and Asset M anagement P lan (SCAM P ) project in 20 22- 23 and the capitalisation of 
expenditure.

N ote 2 :  U nderl ying net resul t

Non- operational capital funding is the income from operations relating to funding for capital projects. This funding 
is classified as revenue from operations and included in the Net result from operations. H owever, the corresponding 
capital expenditure is not included in the calculation of the Net result from operations. Accordingly, the Net result 
from operations will portray a position that is better than the true underlying financial result. 

For this reason, the Net result from operations is adjusted to remove the effects of funding for capital projects.

N et resul t from operations ( 704 000) ( 680 2 4 5) ( 70 981)

L es s  impac t o f :

N on- operational  capital  funding

Appropriation revenue – capital1 3.1 … … 6 0 0 0 0

U nderl ying net resul t from operations ( 704 000) ( 680 2 4 5) ( 130 981)
1Th e 2021- 22 payment relates to funding for th e N ew V isitor C entre.

N otes B udget

$

A ctual

$

V ariance

$

V ariance

%  

N otes 2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$
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N ote 3:  Revenue 

Income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when an increase in future economic benefits, 
related to an increase in an asset or a decrease of a liability, has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Income is recognised in accordance with the requirements of AASB 1 5  Revenue from C ontracts with  C ustomers
or AASB 1 0 5 8  Income of N ot- for-for-for P rofit E ntities, dependent on whether there is a contract with a customer defined 
by AASB 1 5 .

All of the RTBG’s revenue is received into the NRE Tas bank accounts.

3.1 Revenue from G overnment

Appropriations, whether operating or capital, are recognised as revenues in the period in which the RTBG gains 
control of the appropriated funds. Except for any amounts identified as carried forward, control arises in the period 
of appropriation.

Appropriation revenue – operating1 3 6 0 5 0 0 0 3 6 41 0 0 0 3 5 0 3 0 0 0

Appropriation revenue - capital … … 6 0 0 0 0

Total 3 605 000 3 64 1 000 3 563 000

1Th e increase in appropriation is primarily additional funding for th e Strategic Master P lan Review and for salaries.

3.2  G rants and fundraising 

Grant revenue, where there is a sufficiently specific performance obligation attached, is recognised when the RTBG 
satisfies its performance obligations. The RTBG typically satisfies its performance obligations, and recognises 
revenue associated with those performance obligations, when either project milestones are met or when the 
associated expenditure has been incurred on approved activities.

Grant revenue, donations, sponsorships and bequests, without a sufficiently specific performance obligation are 
recognised when the RTBG gains control of the asset (typically on receipt).

P rivate sector grants1 1 35 5 8 4 7 6 8 9

D onations, sponsorships and bequests 1 1 5 474 6 5 49 0

P ublic Building M aintenance P rogram2 … 23 0 38

Total 2 51 058 96 2 17

1P rivate sector grants primarily relate to funding received to undertak e conservation activities.
2Funding received as part of th e Government’s ’s ’ Tasmanian Support and Stimulus P ack age for various non- capital construction and maintenance 
work s.

2 02 3

B udget

$

2 02 3

A ctual

$

2 02 2

A ctual

$

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

42 | RTBG | Annual Report Financials 2022-23



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

3.3 Sal es of goods and services 

Revenue from sales of goods and services are recognised when the RTBG satisfies a performance obligation by 
transferring the promised goods or services to the customer. 

G oods N ature of timing of satisfaction of 
P erformance ob l igation,  incl uding 
significant payment terms

Revenue recognition pol icies

RTBG sells goods 
through its shop.

RTBG typically satisfies the performance 
obligation on sale of its products. 

RTBG recognises revenue 
associated with performance 
obligations at the time ownership of 
the goods is transferred.

Services N ature of timing of satisfaction of 
P erformance ob l igation,  incl uding 
significant payment terms

Revenue recognition pol icies

RTBG provides venue 
hire, tours and event 
services.

RTBG typically satisfies the performance 
obligation when the event occurs.

and all obligations are 

associated with performance 
associated with performance 

RTBG recognises revenue 
obligations when the 

occurred, and all obligations when the event has
completed. 

Sales of goods1 6 44 443 45 4 0 8 9

Sales of services2 20 3 8 35 1 36 8 5 5

Total 84 8 2 78 590 94 4  
1 Most sales of goods occur th rough  th e Botanical Sh op.
2 Services include venue h ire,  tours and events.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

3.4  I nterest

Interest income includes interest received on bank term deposits. Interest on funds is recognised as it accrued 
using the effective interest method.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Interest on term deposits1 21 1 36 5 27 8 0 8

Interest on at call deposits 4 273 1 8 0

Total 2 15 638 2 7 988

1Th e increase in interest on term deposits is driven b y interest rates increasing from 0. 2 per cent to 4 . 0 per cent in 2022- 23 .

3.5 Rents received

Rent revenue is recognised when the RTBG gains control of the right to receive the funds.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Rents received1 1 29 40 1 72 0 0 0

Total 12 9 4 01 72 000
1Th e increase in rent received in 2022- 23  reflects th e ex piration of rent relief for th e impact of C O V ID - 19  provided to th e restaurant operator in 2021- 22
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3.7 O th er revenue

Other revenue is recognised when the RTBG gains control of the right to receive the funds.

Reimbursement of expenses1 26 745 …

Other 29 1 9 9 7 735

Total 55 94 4 7 735

1Th e 2022- 23 figure includes settlement of insurance claims.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

3.6 Contrib utions received

Contributions received free of charge by the RTBG are recognised as income when a fair value can be reliably 
determined and when the service would have been purchased if they had not been donated. U se of these resources 
is also recognised as an expense.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Fair value of volunteer services received1 5 7 8 1 5 44 378

Service L evel Agreement2 5 5 20 4 …

Total 113 019 4 4 378
1 Fair value of volunteer services received th rough  various volunteer programs and groups.  Refer to note 5 . 4 - O th er ex penses.
2 Fair value of corporate support services provided b y N RE  Tas.  Th e fee for th ese services waswasw waived in 2022- 23 .  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

N ote 4 :  N et gains/ ( l osses)

4 .1 N et gain/ ( l oss)  on non- financial  assets

Gains or losses from the sale of non- financial assets are recognised when control of the asset has passed to the 
buyer.

4 .2  O th er gain/ ( l oss)  on ch ange in estimate of non- financial  assets

K ey j udgement

All non- financial assets are assessed to determine whether any impairment exists. Impairment exists when the 
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value 
less costs to sell, and value in use. V alue in use is based on the current replacement cost where the asset would 
be replaced if the RTBG was deprived of it.

All impairments and write downs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Other gain/ (loss) on change in estimate – Write downs1 (474 238 ) (8 7 444)

Total ( 4 74 2 38) ( 87 4 4 4 )

1Th e 2022- 23  write downs primarily reflect water and irrigation infrastructure assets no longer in use and req uiring replacement and sewerage sewerage sewer
infrastructure assets controlled b y th e H ob art C ity C ouncil.  Th e 2021- 22 oth er gain/ (loss) value includes write downs relating to th e dismantling and 
removal of assorted infrastructure assets th at h ave b een replaced.

P lant and equipment disposals 2 727 1 0 0 0 0

Total 2 72 7 10 000

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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N ote 5:  Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic 
benefits, related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability, has arisen that can be measured reliably.

All of the RTBG’S expenses incurred are recognised into the NRE Tas bank accounts.

5.1 Empl oyee b enefits

Employee benefits include, where applicable, entitlements to wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave, long 
service leave, superannuation and any other post- employment benefits.

( a) Empl oyee expenses

Superannuation expenses relating to defined contribution schemes are paid directly to superannuation funds at a 
rate of 1 0 .5 per cent (20 22:  1 0 .0 per cent) of salary for all employees not in the defined benefit scheme. In addition, 
the RTBG is also required to pay into the Public Account a “gap” payment equivalent to 3.45 per cent (20 22:  
3.45 per cent) of salary in respect of employees who are members of contribution schemes.

Superannuation expenses relating to defined benefit schemes are payments into the P ublic Account. The amount 
of the payment is based on a contribution rate determined by the Treasurer, on the advice of the State Actuary. 
The current contribution is 1 2.9 5 per cent (20 22:  1 2.9 5 per cent) of salary. 

Wages and salaries 2 1 8 0 5 0 9 1 8 5 2 8 0 9

Annual leave 235 9 32 1 9 1 1 36

L ong service leave 5 5 31 3 (39 1 71 )

Sick leave 8 2 35 3 1 34 1 0 0

Overtime and allowances 1 0 3 8 5 7 8 9 6 8 5

Superannuation - defined contribution schemes 328 76 5 276 48 9

Superannuation - defined benefit scheme 1 0 1 5 0 9 9 0 6

Total 2 996 879 2 514 954

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

K  M cCann 1 9 0 0 0                                              … 1 9 9 5                      …         20 9 9 5  

I Cresswell 4 9 0 0 … 5 1 5 … 5 41 5

A Foley 4 9 0 0 … 5 1 5 … 5 41 5

D  L eesong 4 9 0 0 … 5 1 5 … 5 41 5

P  M ussared 4 9 0 0 … 5 1 5 … 5 41 5

T Taylor 4 9 0 0 … 5 1 5 … 5 41 5

Y  Gagnon 9 7 41 4 4 1 1 2 1 3 5 8 9 2 5 8 7 1 1 7 70 2

D  Reid 71 5 76 … 9 8 40 … 8 1 41 6

Total 2 12 4 90 4 112 2 7 999 2 587 2 4 7 188

2 02 3 Sh ort- term b enefits L ong- term b enefits Total

Sal ary2 O th er3 Superannuation4 O th er5

$ $ $ $ $

( b ) Remuneration of k ey management personnel

K ey management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the RTBG, directly or indirectly. RTBG’s key management personnel are comprised 
of the D irector and board members. 

Remuneration for the D irector is set by the State Service Act 2000. Remuneration for board members is set in 
accordance with the Tasmanian Government Board Fee P olicy issued by the D epartment of P remier and 
Cabinet.

Remuneration and other terms of employment are specified in employment contracts. Remuneration includes 
salary. L ong term employee expenses include long service leave and superannuation obligations.

Acting Arrangements

When members of key management personnel are unable to fulfil their duties, consideration is given to appointing 
other members of senior staff to their position during their period of absence. Individuals are considered members 
of key management personnel when acting arrangements are for more than a period of one month.

2 0 2 2 - 2 3 K ey man ag emen t pers o n n el

K  M cCann Board M ember (Chair)

I Cresswell Board M ember 

A Foley Board M ember

D  L eesong Board M ember 

P  M ussared Board M ember 

T Taylor Board M ember

J Jacobi Board M ember (Secretary of NRE Tas)1

V  P into Board M ember (as a delegate of the Secretary of NRE Tas)1

Y  Gagnon D irector from 24 November 20 22

D  Reid Acting D irector (1  July 20 22 to 23 November 20 22)
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1 Th e Secretary,  and appointed delegates,  do not receive remuneration from th e RTBG.  
2 All forms of consideration paid and payab le for services rendered and compensated ab sences during th e period.
3 Th is comprises th e movement in annual leave entitlements for th e year.  N egative amounts represent more leave b eing tak en,  in a given year,  

th an accrued.
4 Based on th e P ub lic Sector Superannuation Reform Act 2016.
5 Th is comprises th e movement in long service leave entitlements for th e year.  

B M athison 2 1 9 2 … 21 9  … 2 41 1  

K  M cCann 1 3 9 5 8  … 1 39 6  … 1 5 35 4 

I Cresswell 1 5 8 3 … 1 5 8  … 1 741  

A Foley 4 9 0 0  … 49 0  … 5 39 0  

D  L eesong 1 5 8 3 … 1 5 8  … 1 741  

P  M ussared 1 5 8 3 … 1 5 8  … 1 741  

P  Oxley 2 6 5 7 … 26 6  … 2 9 23 

T Taylor 4 9 0 0  … 49 0  … 5 39 0  

G D avies 1 43 9 44 24 1 8 2 22 6 1 3 8 1 0  1 9 1 5 49  

D  Reid 34 76 5 2 1 44 4 447 4 31 4 45 6 70  

Total 2 12 065 2 6 32 6 30 395 5 12 4  2 73 910

2 02 2 Sh ort- term b enefits L ong- term b enefits Total

Sal ary2 O th er3 Superannuation4 O th er5

$ $ $ $ $

( c) Rel ated party transactions

AASB 1 24 Related P arty D isclosures requires related party disclosures to ensure that the financial statements 
contain disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that the RTBG’s financial results may have been 
affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions with such parties. 

This note is not intended to disclose conflicts of interest for which there are administrative procedures in place. 
There are no significant related party transactions requiring disclosure in 20 22- 23.

2 0 2 1 - 2 2  K ey man ag emen t pers o n n el

B M athison Board M ember (Chair, ceased August 20 21 )

K  M cCann Board M ember (Chair, commenced September 20 21 )

I Cresswell Board M ember (commenced February 20 22)

A Foley Board M ember

D  L eesong Board M ember (commenced February 20 22)

P  M ussared Board M ember (commenced February 20 22)

P  Oxley Board M ember (ceased January 20 22)

T Taylor Board M ember

T Baker Board M ember (Secretary of NRE Tas) (ceased February 20 22)1

J Jacobi Board M ember (as Acting Secretary of NRE Tas) (commenced February 20 22)1

V  P into Board M ember (as a delegate of the Secretary of NRE Tas)1

G D avies D irector

D  Reid Acting D irector (30 July 20 21  to 1 November 20 21  and from 1 6 M ay 20 22)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

Buildings 26 6 5 29 233 5 9 8

Infrastructure 21 3 9 20 228 45 1

Right- of-of-of use assets 34 0 79 29 28 0

P lant and equipment 31 339 22 5 25

Total 54 5 867 513 854

• Buildings 25 - 5 0  years

• Infrastructure 25 - 1 0 0  years

• P lant and equipment 5 - 1 0  years

• Right- of-of-of use assets 5  years

M ajor depreciation periods are:

5.2  D epreciation and amortisation

All applicable non- financial assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives 
in a manner which reflects the consumption of their service potential. L and, being an asset with an unlimited useful 
life, is not depreciated. 

K ey estimate and j udgement
D epreciation is calculated on a straight- line basis. The estimated remaining useful lives, residual values and the 
depreciation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period. 

D epreciation 2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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5.3 Suppl ies and consumab l es

Supplies and consumables are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the goods or services 
have been received.

P rofessional and contract services1 473 5 9 5 28 2 79 7

P roperty services 322 0 6 3 327 1 78  

M inor equipment and maintenance2 1 76 6 79 9 9 26 5  

General insurance 1 0 9 5 71 9 5 6 32 

Advertising, promotion and marketing 75 5 1 1 45 46 3 

Travel and transport 74 9 6 8 6 6 48 5  

Communications and information technology 6 9 6 24 32 39 3 

Employee costs 5 9 0 6 8 26 76 6  

Administrative costs 20 743 1 3 75 3 

Audit fees – financial audit3 1 5 1 0 0 1 4 6 9 0  

Other supplies and consumables 5 7 6 0 0 76 9 47

Total 1 4 54 52 2 1 081 369

1Th e increase in professional and contract services is a comb ination of th e payment of funds to th e L andscape Recovery Foundation for th e 
Tasmanian O rch id C onservation and Research  P rogram and oth er professional services.  
2 Th e movement in minor eq uipment and maintenance is driven b y increased repairs and maintenance work s undertak en.
3 Audit fees paid or payable to the Tasmanian Audit Office for the audit of the RTBG’s financial statements were $ 15 100 (2021(2021( - 22: $ 14 69 0)69 0)69 0 .
N o oth er services were provided b y th e Auditor-provided b y th e Auditor-provided b y th e Auditor General.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

5.4  O th er expenses

Expenses are recognised when the associated service and supply have been provided.

Fair value of volunteer services incurred1 5 7 8 1 5 44 378

Service L evel Agreement expenses incurred2 5 0 0 0 0 …

Workers compensation premiums 24 9 0 0 26 75 1

Financial expenses3 1 1 46 1 1 1 1 79

Total  14 4 176 82 308

1 Refer to note 3 . 6 – C ontrib utions received.
2 Th e 2023  Service L evel Agreement ex penses incurred relates to services consumed b ut not paid for.
3 Represents interest on leased assets,  cash  collection services and oth er financial fees.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

6.2  O th er financial  assets

Other financial assets are term deposits with maturities of more than six months.

Term deposit1 7 0 38 78 5 7 0 9 4 48 5

Total  7 038 785 7 094 4 85

Settled with in 12 month s 7 0 38 78 5 7 0 9 4 48 5

Total 7 038 785 7 094  4 85
1Reflects capital funding for th e N ew V isitor C entre b eing drawn- down as work s progress.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

6.3 I nventories

Inventories held for distribution are valued at cost adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential. 
Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal consideration are valued at current replacement cost. Inventories are 
recorded using the periodic system and are measured using the weighted average cost formula.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Inventory held for resale 8 4 76 1 9 0 5 28

Total  84 761 90 52 8

C onsumed with in 12 month s 8 4 76 1 9 0 5 28

Total 84 761 90 52 8

N ote 6:  A ssets 

Assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial P osition when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
will flow to the RTBG and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

6.1 Receivab l es

All payments for goods and services supplied by the RTBG are received by NRE Tas and settled in a monthly 
elimination process between NRE Tas and the RTBG. This process is on an accrual basis and done on the last 
day of each month so RTBG has no outstanding debtors at the end of the financial year.

Accrued revenue is recognised when revenue has been earned by providing a good or service, but either the 
payment has not been received or an invoice has not been raised, for that good or service.

Accrued interest is recognised when interest has been earned but is yet to be received.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Accrued revenue1 25 28 9 6 25 7

Accrued interest2 6 5 6 6 1 1 3 0 71

Total  90 950 19 32 8

Settled with in 12 month s 9 0 9 5 0 1 9 328

Total 90 950 19 32 8
1Accrued revenue for 2022- 23  comprises accrued sh op sales of $ 18 203  (2021- 22:  $ 6 25 7 ) and rental income of $ 7 08 6 (2021- 22:  N il)
2Th e movement in accrued interest is primarily driven b y increasing interest rates.
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6.4  P roperty,  pl ant and eq uipment

(a) V aluation b asis
L and, buildings and infrastructure are recorded at fair value less accumulated depreciation. All other non- current 
physical assets, including work in progress, are recorded at historic cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. All assets within a class of assets are measured on the same basis. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The costs of self - constructed 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site 
on which they are located. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Fair value is based on the highest and best use of the asset. U nless there is an explicit Government policy to the 
contrary, the highest and best use of an asset is the current purpose for which the asset is being used.

(b ) Asset recognition th resh old
The asset capitalisation threshold adopted by the RTBG is $ 1 0 0 0 0 , and any other assets where it is considered 
appropriate. Assets valued at less than the threshold amount are typically charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the year of purchase (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which 
are significant in total).

(c) Sub seq uent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the RTBG and its costs 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of day to day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(d) Revaluations
Fair value is determined on the basis of an independent valuation prepared by external valuation experts. The fair 
values are recognised in the financial statements of the entity and are reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
to ensure that the carrying value of land and buildings is not materially different from their fair values. 

The RTBG has adopted a revaluation threshold of $ 1 0 0 0 0 , with assets being revalued every five years. In 
accordance with AASB1 1 6  P roperty,  P lant and E q uipment, in years between valuations, indices are supplied by 
qualified valuers to index valuations to fair value.

Revaluation increments and decrements arising from recognising land, buildings and infrastructure at their fair 
values are offset against one another within the class of assets. Net revaluation increments in the carrying amounts 
of land, buildings and infrastructure are recognised directly in the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent 
that the increment reverses a decrement that was previously recognised as an expense in the net profit or loss in 
respect of the same class of assets, in which case the increment is recognised as revenue in net profit or loss. Net 
revaluation decrements in the carrying amounts of land, buildings and infrastructure are recognised as an expense 
in profit or loss, except to the extent that the decrement reverses a previous revaluation increment in respect of the 
same class of assets credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve, in which case the decrement is debited 
directly to reserve to the extent that a credit exists in respect of the same class of assets.

All other non- current physical assets are recorded at historic cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

(e) D isposal of non- current assets
Gains or losses from the sale of non- current assets are recognised when control of the assets has passed to the 
buyer.

(f) Fair value h ierarch y

All assets of the RTBG for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised 
within the following fair value hierarchy, based on the data and assumptions used in the most recent specific 
appraisals:

• L evel 1 - represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

• L evel 2 - represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from inputs (other than quoted 
prices included within L evel 1 ) that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

• L evel 3 - represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the RTBG has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, the RTBG determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re- assessing 
categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

There were no transfers of assets between fair value hierarchy levels during the current period.

(a) C arrying amount

L and at fair value 9 0 9 5 474 7 276 378

Total  9 095 4 74 7 2 76 378

Buildings at fair value 1 2 41 1 274 1 1 8 45 28 3

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (6 8 0 6 348 ) (6 6 1 0 20 0 )

5 6 0 4 9 26 5 235 0 8 3

Works in progress (at cost) 6 1 1 241 478 5 5 9

Total  6 2 16 167 5 713 64 2

P lant and equipment at cost 36 0 5 6 3 30 2 8 49

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (1 29  1 44) (1 1 0 8 6 2)

Total  2 31 4 19 191 987

Total  P roperty,  pl ant and eq uipment 15 54 3 060 13 182 007

L and and buildings were revalued to fair value as at 30 June 20 1 9 by the Office of the Tasmanian 
V aluer- General (OV G). L and and buildings were indexed to fair value as at 30 June 20 23, based on indices 
provided by the OV G of 25 .0 per cent for land (20 21 - 22: 8 .34 per cent) and 1 2.0 per cent for buildings (20 21 - 22:
1 1 .46 per cent). The resulting changes in asset values were taken to the Asset Revaluation Reserve.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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(b ) Reconciliation of movements

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end 
of the current and previous financial year are set out below. Carrying value means the net amount after deducting 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Carrying val ue at 1 Jul y 7 2 76 378 5 2 35 083 191 987 4 78 559 13 182 007

Additions 1 27 1 0 7 70 771 1 32 6 8 2 230 5 6 1

Revaluation increments /  
(decrements) 1 8 1 9 0 9 5 6 0 0 5 28 … … 2 41 9 6 23

Write downs … (2 6 5 5 ) … … (2 6 5 5 )

D epreciation … (26 6 5 29 ) (31 339 ) … (29 7 8 6 8 )

Transfers between asset classes … 1 1 39 2 … … 1 1 39 2

Carrying val ue at 30 June 9 095 4 74 5 604 92 6 2 31 4 19 611 2 4 1 15 54 3 060

Assets at fair value b y level of th e fair value h ierarch y

At cost … … 231 41 9 6 1 1 241 8 42 6 6 0

L evel 3 (specialised) 9 0 9 5 474 5 6 0 4 9 26 … … 1 4 70 0 40 0

F air val ue at 30 June 9 095 4 74 5 604 92 6 2 31 4 19 611 2 4 1 15 54 3 060

Carrying val ue at 1 Jul y 6 716 2 4 3 4 831 4 13 115 095 533 664 12 196 4 15

Additions … 1 1 0 35 8 9 9 41 7 (5 5 1 0 5 ) 1 5 4 6 70

Revaluation increments /  
(decrements) 5 6 0 1 35 5 26 9 1 0 … … 1 0 8 7 0 45

D epreciation … (233 5 9 8 ) (22 5 25 ) … (25 6 1 23)

Carrying val ue at 30 June 7 2 76 378 5 2 35 083 191 987 4 78 559 13 182 007

Assets at fair value b y level of th e fair value h ierarch y

At cost … … 1 9 1 9 8 7 478 5 5 9 78 0 9 0 4

L evel 3 (specialised) 7 276 378 5 235 0 8 3 … … 1 2 40 1 1 0 3

F air val ue at 30 June 7 2 76 378 5 2 35 083 191 987 4 78 559 13 182 007

$ $ $ $ $

2 02 3 L and B uil dings
P l ant and 

eq uipment
W ork  in 

progress
Total

$ $ $ $ $

2 02 2 L and B uil dings
P l ant and 

eq uipment
W ork  in 

progress
Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

6.5 Righ t- of- use assets

AASB 1 6  requires the RTBG to recognise a right- of- use asset, where it has control of the underlying asset over 
the lease term. A right- of-of-of use asset is measured at the present value of initial lease liability, adjusted by any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date and lease incentives, any initial direct costs incurred, and 
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset or restoring the site.

The RTBG has elected not to recognise right- of- use assets and lease liabilities arising from short- term and 
low- value leases, and rental arrangements for which the D epartment of Treasury and Finance (Treasury) has 
substantive substitution rights over the assets. L eases expected to cost less than $ 1 0 0 0 0  are considered 
low- value, and leases with a term of less than 1 2 months are considered short- term. Substantive substitution rights 
relate primarily to vehicle leases which are managed by the D epartment of Treasury and Finance.

Right- of-of-of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the assets useful life and the term of the lease. Where the 
RTBG obtains ownership of the underlying leased asset, or if the cost of the right- of-of-of use asset reflects that the 
RTBG will exercise a purchase option, the RTBG depreciates the right- of-of-of use asset over its useful life.

$ $

Carrying val ue at 1 Jul y 137 393 137 393

Additions … …

D epreciation (34 0 79 ) (34 0 79 )

Carrying val ue at 30 June 103 314 103 314

$ $

Carrying val ue at 1 Jul y 70 703 70 703

Additions 9 5 9 70 9 5 9 70

D epreciation (29 28 0 ) (29 28 0 )

Carrying val ue at 30 June 137 393 137 393

2 02 3 P l ant and 
eq uipment

Total

2 02 2 P l ant and 
eq uipment

Total
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6.6 I nfrastructure

(a) C arrying amount

Roads, paths, walls, fences and gates at fair value 8 9 5 0 36 8 4 9 30 475

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (5 0 5 0 9 36 ) (2 41 5 76 5 )

3 8 9 9 432 2 5 1 4 71 0

Work in progress (at cost) 7 8 21 …

Total  3 907 2 53 2 514 710

U tility services and other infrastructure at fair value 1 70 5 432 1 1 9 9 731

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (1 1 0 7 75 9 ) (8 38 38 5 )

Total 597 673 361 34 6

Gardens, ponds and water features at fair value 1 9 0 4 8 9 1 1 733 5 5 4

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (9 5 4 75 2) (8 34 8 8 2)

Total 950 139 898 672

Water, sewerage and irrigation services at fair value 1 222 227 1 5 41 6 47

L ess:  Accumulated depreciation (8 0 4 273) (8 49 5 38 )

Total 4 17 954 692 109

Total  I nfrastructure 5 873 019 4 4 66 837

Infrastructure assets were revalued to fair value as at 30 June 20 23 by Tasmanian V aluation Services. The 
resulting changes in asset values were taken to the Asset Revaluation Reserve.

Refer to note 6 .4 for key estimates and judgements used to measure infrastructure assets.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

6.7 O th er assets

Other assets consist of prepayments which are recognised when payment has been made in the current year for 
goods or services that will be consumed in future financial years. P repayments relate to actual transactions that 
are recorded at cost.

P repayments 5 2 6 1 7 48 275

Total  52 617 4 8 2 75

Recovered with in 12 month s 5 2 6 1 7 48 275

Total 52 617 4 8 2 75

N ote 7:  L iab il ities

L iabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial P osition when it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will result from the settlement of a present obligation and the amount at which the 
settlement will take place can be measured reliably.

7.1 P ayab l es

All payments for goods and services received by the RTBG are made by NRE Tas and settled monthly between 
the two organisations. Outstanding payables at the end of financial year are recognised in the RTBG financial 
statements at amortised cost, which due to the short settlement period, equates to face value. P ayables comprises 
goods and services received but not yet invoiced.

Accrued expenses1 20 6 0 0 9 38 29 4

Total  2 06 009 38 2 94

Settled with in 12 month s 20 6 0 0 9 38 29 4

Total 2 06 009 38 2 94
1Th e movement in accrued ex penses is primarily due to N RE Tas P roj ect Management salary costs related to th e V isitor E x perience P roj ect and 
RTBG asset maintenance proj ects.

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$
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7.2  L ease l iab il ities

A lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The discount 
rate used to calculate the present value of the lease liability is the rate implicit in the lease. Where the implicit rate 
is not known and cannot be determined, the Tascorp indicative lending rate including the relevant administration 
margin is used.

The RTBG has elected not to recognise right- of-of-of use assets and lease liabilities arising from short- term leases, 
rental arrangements for which Treasury has substantive substitution rights over the assets and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low- value. Substantive substitution rights relate primarily to office accommodation. An 
asset is considered low- value when it is expected to cost less than $ 1 0 0 0 0 .The RTBG has entered into the 
following leasing arrangements:

Cl ass of righ t- of- use asset D etail s of l easing arrangements

P lant and equipment K ubota loader and two John D eere utility vehicles.

Current

L ease liabilities 31 78 4 31 0 9 4

N on- current

L ease liabilities 6 7 71 8 9 9 6 27

Total 99 502 130 72 1

M aturity analysis of lease liabilities

One year or less 34 39 9 34 39 9

From two to three years 6 9 41 7 6 8 79 8

From four to five years … 35 0 1 8

Total 103 816 138 2 15

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

2 02 3
$

2 02 2
$

The lease liability in the maturity analysis is presented using undiscounted contractual amounts before deducting
finance charges.

The following amounts are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

Interest on lease liabilities included in note 5 .4 finance expenses 3 0 5 5 3 5 8 0

L ease expenses included in note 5 .3:

L ease of low- value assets 24 39 0 6 334

N et expenses from l easing activities 2 7 4 4 5 9 914
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

7.3 Empl oyee b enefit l iab il ities

L iabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave are recognised when an employee becomes entitled to receive 
a benefit. Those liabilities expected to be realised within 1 2 months are measured as the amount expected to be 
paid. Other employee entitlements are measured as the present value of the benefit at 30 June, where the impact 
of discounting is material, and at the amount expected to be paid if discounting is not material.

A liability for long service leave is recognised and is measured as the present value of expected future payments 
to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Accrued salaries 8 7 8 0 5 6 3 6 45

Annual leave 21 2 9 6 7 1 73 1 20

L ong service leave 373 9 49 426 0 45

State Service Accumulated L eave Scheme (SSAL S) 7 247 1 7 6 5 4

Total  681 968 680 4 64

E x pected to settle wh olly with in 12 month s 26 1 26 5 25 3 5 8 8

E x pected to settle wh olly after 12 month s 420 70 3 426 8 76

Total 681 968 680 4 64

7.4  O th er l iab il ities

Other liabilities consist of revenue received in advance which is recognised when payment has been received for 
a good or service, but where the RTBG has not yet delivered that good or service.

Revenue received in advance 39 9 1 4 9 6 70 1

Total  39 914 96 701

Settled with in 12 month s 39 9 1 4 9 6 70 1

Total 39 914 96 701
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N ote 8:  Commitments and contingencies

8.1 Sch edul e of commitments

Commitments represent those contractual arrangements entered into by the RTBG that are not reflected in the 
Statement of Financial P osition.

L eases are recognised as right- of-of-of use assets and lease liabilities in the Statement of Financial P osition, excluding 
short term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, which are recognised as an expense 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

By type

Capital  commitments

Buildings1 6 5 1 1 71 …

Total  capital  commitments 651 171 …

O th er l ease commitments

M otor vehicle fleet (base usage charge) 9 3 221 5 2 39 0

Total  oth er l ease commitments 93 2 2 1 52 390

Total  commitments 74 4 392 52 390

By maturity

Capital  commitments

One year or less 1 1 8 770 …

From one to five years 5 32 40 1 …

M ore than five years … …

Total  capital  commitments 651 171 …

O th er l ease commitments

One year or less 23 0 20 27 729

From one to five years 70 20 1 24 6 6 1

M ore than five years … …

Total  oth er l ease commitments 93 2 2 1 52 390

Total 74 4 392 52 390

1Th e increase in commitments reflects th e arch itecture tender for th e N ew V isitor V isitor V C entre.  Th e tender h ad not b een awarded as at 3 0 J une 2023 ,
h owever th e tender sub mission assessments were finalised.

Capital  commitments

Capital commitments include contracts with a value of $ 5 0  0 0 0  and above. Capital payments are determined by 
the value of the contract and the timing of the completion of the work.

O th er l ease commitments

Motor veh icles

The RTBG’s motor vehicle fleet is owned and managed by the D epartment of Treasury and Finance (Treasury). 
Treasury is the central agency which purchases vehicles on behalf of the RTBG. The RTBG pays a monthly 
payment to Treasury via L easeP lan Australia for use of the vehicles.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

As there is no lease contract between Treasury and the RTBG, for the purposes of AASB 1 6  L eases, the RTBG is 
not required to recognise a lease liability and right- of- use asset for motor vehicles, and costs are recognised as an 
expense as incurred.

The RTBG recognises a commitment for the terms of motor vehicle agreements. P ayments vary according to the 
type of vehicle and, where applicable, the price received for replaced vehicles. Agreement terms are for a maximum 
of three years or specific kilometres, whichever occurs first, with no change to the rate. No restrictions or purchase 
options are contained in the lease agreements.

8.2  Contingent assets and l iab il ities

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial P osition due to uncertainty 
regarding any possible amount or timing of any possible underlying claim or obligation.

Q uantifiab le contingencies

A quantifiable contingent asset is any possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the entity. 

A quantifiable contingent liability is any possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the entity;  or any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. To 
the extent that any quantifiable contingencies are insured, details provided below are recorded net.

The RTBG does not have any quantifiable contingent assets or liabilities.

U nq uantifiab le contingencies

The RTBG does not have any unquantifiable contingent assets or liabilities.

N ote 9:  Reserves

9.1 A sset reval uation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non- current 
assets.

B al ance at b eginning of financial  year 18 989 755

Revaluation incrementsincrementsi (d(d( ecrements)s)s

L and 1 8 1 9 0 9 5

Buildings 6 0 0 5 28

Infrastructure1 2 0 26 6 9 3

B al ance at end of financial  year 2 3 4 36 071

B al ance at b eginning of financial  year 17 4 94 4 2 0

Revaluation increments (decrements)

L and 5 6 0 1 35

Buildings 5 26 9 1 0

Infrastructure 40 8 29 0

B al ance at end of financial  year 18 989 755

1Th e movement in th e asset revaluation reserve is primary attrib utab le to th e infrastructure revaluations and land index ation.
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Cash means notes, coins, any deposits held at call with a bank or financial institution, being short term of three 
months or less and highly liquid. D eposits are recognised at amortised cost, being their face value.

10.1 Cash  and cash  eq uival ents

Short term deposits 9 78 0 32 5 5 7 0 44

Cash at bank 1 6 8 731 49 0 0 8 8

Cash on hand 2 9 0 0 2 9 0 0

Total  1 14 9 663 1 050 032

N ote 10:  Cash  fl ow  reconcil iation

10.2  Reconcil iation of net resul t to net cash  from operating activities

N et resul t ( 680 2 4 5) ( 70 981)

D epreciation and amortisation 5 45 8 6 7 5 1 3 8 5 4

Net gain /  (loss) on non- financial assets (2 727) (1 0 0 0 0 )

Other gain /  (loss) on change in estimate of non- financial assets 474 238 8 7 444

(Increase) /  decrease in Receivables (71 6 22) 5 7 0 9 0

(Increase) /  decrease in Inventories 5 76 7 (5 5 4)

(Increase) /  decrease in Other assets (4 342) (1 2 76 7)

Increase /  (decrease) in P ayables 1 6 7 71 5 (6 6 6 49 )

Increase /  (decrease) in Employee benefit liabilities 1 5 0 4 (48 5 34)

Increase /  (decrease) in Other liabilities (5 6 78 7) (7 0 0 8 )

N et cash  from ( used b y)  operating activities 379 368 4 4 1 895
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B al ance as at 1 Jul y 1 30 721

Changes from financing cash flows:

Cash Repayments (31 21 9 )

B al ance as at 30 June 99 502

10.3 Reconcil iation of l iab il ities arising from financing activities

L iabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, 
classified in the Statement of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

B al ance as at 1 Jul y 70 9 6 0

Acquisitions /  New leases 9 5 9 70

Other movements (1 0 0 0 0 )

Changes from financing cash flows:

Cash Repayments (26 20 9 )

B al ance as at 30 June 130 72 1

$
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$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

There is no expected credit loss in relation to trade receivables due to the elimination basis described above. 
H istorically there has been no credit loss in relation to RTBG receivables as all outstanding debts have been 
recovered by the RTBG.

N ote 11:  F inancial  instruments

11.1 Risk  exposures

(a) Risk management policies

The RTBG has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit risk;

• liquidity risk;  and

• market risk.

The D irector has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the RTBG’s risk management 
framework. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse risks faced by the RTBG, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

(b) Credit risk exposures

Credit risk is the financial loss to the RTBG if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations. No changes have been made to credit risk policy and methods from the previous year.

Receivables All payments for goods and services 
supplied by the RTBG are received by 
NRE Tas and settled in a monthly 
elimination process between NRE Tas and 
the RTBG. The elimination process is on an 
accrual basis. Consequently, the RTBG has 
no outstanding debtors at the end of the 
financial year.

NRE Tas offers 30 - day terms of 
trade. 

Cash and deposits RTBG cash and deposits are managed 
through investment in short term deposits to 
allow for the greatest return on funds and 
that they are available for operating 
activities as and when required.

Cash means notes, coins, and 
deposits held at call.

Other financial assets RTBG other financial assets are managed 
through investment in term deposits with 
longer term maturities to allow for the 
greatest return on funds and to ensure that 
the funds are available for investing 
activities as and when required.

Other financial assets means term 
deposits with maturities of more 
than six months. These 
investments typically have a fixed 
interest rate.

F inancial  I nstruments A ccounting and strategic pol icies 
( incl uding recognition criteria,  
measurement b asis and credit q ual ity of 
instrument)

N ature of underl ying instrument 
( incl uding significant terms and 
conditions affecting th e amount,  
timing and certainty of cash  
fl ow s)
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Maturity analysis for financial liab ilities

The following tables detail the undiscounted cash flows payable by the RTBG by remaining contractual maturity 
for its financial liabilities. It should be noted that as these are undiscounted, totals may not reconcile to the 
carrying amounts presented in the Statement of Financial P osition.

2 02 3 1
year

2
years

3
years

4
years

5
years

5+
years

U ndiscounted 
total

Carrying 
A mount

F inancial  L iab il ities
P ayables 20 6 0 0 9 … … … … … 2 06 009 2 06 009

Total 2 06 009 … … … … … 2 06 009 2 06 009

2 02 2 1
year

2
years

3
years

4
years

5
years

5+
years

U ndiscounted 
total

Carrying 
A mount

F inancial  L iab il ities
P ayables 38 29 4 … … … … … 38 2 94 38 2 94

Total 38 2 94 … … … … … 38 2 94 38 2 94

(d) M arket risk

M arket risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. The primary market risk that the RTBG is exposed to is interest rate risk. No changes have been 
made to the market risk policy and methods from the previous year.

The RTBG exposure to interest rate risk is considered to be low. M inimisation of this risk is achieved by the 
investment of cash and deposits in interest bearing accounts. 

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the RTBG’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2 02 3

$

2 02 2

$

V ariab l e rate instruments

Financial assets 8 1 8 8 448  8 1 44 5 1 7

Total  8 188 4 4 8 8 14 4 517

39

(c) L iquidity risk

L iquidity risk is the risk that the RTBG will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
RTBG’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when they fall due. No changes have been made to the liquidity risk policy and methods from the previous year.

F inancial  I nstruments A ccounting and strategic pol icies 
( incl uding recognition criteria,  
measurement b asis and credit q ual ity of 
instrument)

N ature of underl ying instrument 
( incl uding significant terms and 
conditions affecting th e amount,  
timing and certainty of cash  
fl ow s)

P ayables The RTBG liquidity risk is managed by the 
investment of cash and deposits in short term 
deposits to ensure funds are available to meet 
creditor terms.

The RTBG settles its accounts within 
30 - day terms of trade with the 
majority of its suppliers. 

Maturity analysis for financial liab ilities

The following tables detail the undiscounted cash flows payable by the RTBG by remaining contractual maturity 
for its financial liabilities. It should be noted that as these are undiscounted, totals may not reconcile to the 
carrying amounts presented in the Statement of Financial P osition.

2 02 3 1
year

2
years

3
years

4
years

5
years

5+
years

U ndiscounted 
total

Carrying 
A mount

F inancial  L iab il ities
P ayables 20 6 0 0 9 … … … … … 2 06 009 2 06 009

Total 2 06 009 … … … … … 2 06 009 2 06 009

2 02 2 1
year

2
years

3
years

4
years

5
years

5+
years

U ndiscounted 
total

Carrying 
A mount

F inancial  L iab il ities
P ayables 38 29 4 … … … … … 38 2 94 38 2 94

Total 38 2 94 … … … … … 38 2 94 38 2 94

(d) M arket risk

M arket risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. The primary market risk that the RTBG is exposed to is interest rate risk. No changes have been 
made to the market risk policy and methods from the previous year.

The RTBG exposure to interest rate risk is considered to be low. M inimisation of this risk is achieved by the 
investment of cash and deposits in interest bearing accounts. 

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the RTBG’s interest bearing financial instruments was:
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V ariab l e rate instruments

Financial assets 8 1 8 8 448  8 1 44 5 1 7

Total  8 188 4 4 8 8 14 4 517

(c) L iquidity risk

L iquidity risk is the risk that the RTBG will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
RTBG’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when they fall due. No changes have been made to the liquidity risk policy and methods from the previous year.

F inancial  I nstruments A ccounting and strategic pol icies 
( incl uding recognition criteria,  
measurement b asis and credit q ual ity of 
instrument)

N ature of underl ying instrument 
( incl uding significant terms and 
conditions affecting th e amount,  
timing and certainty of cash  
fl ow s)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)

Sensitivity analysis of the RTBG’s exposure to possible changes in interest rates

Changes in the variable rates of 1 0 0  basis points at reporting date would have the following effect on the RTBG’s 
profit or loss and equity:

30 June 2 02 3

Short term deposits and cash 1 1 49 7 (1 1 49 7) 1 1 49 7 (1 1 49 7)

L ong term deposit1 70 38 8 (70 38 8 ) 70 38 8 (70 38 8 )

N et sensitivity 81 885 ( 81 885) 81 885 ( 81 885)

30 June 2 02 2

Short term deposits and cash 1 0 5 0 0 (1 0 5 0 0 ) 1 0 5 0 0 (1 0 5 0 0 )

L ong term deposit1 70 9 45 (70 9 45 ) 70 9 45 (70 9 45 )

N et sensitivity 81 4 4 5 ( 81 4 4 5) 81 4 4 5 ( 81 4 4 5)

This analysis assumes all other variables remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for the 
20 21 - 22 year.

1L ong term deposits are classified as oth er financial assets, refer to note 6. 2.

11.2  Categories of financial  assets and l iab il ities

F inancial  assets

Cash and equivalents 1 1 49 6 6 3 1 0 5 0 0 32 

Receivables 9 0 9 5 0  1 9 328  

Other financial assets 7 0 38 78 5  7 0 9 4 48 5  

Total 8 2 79 398 8 163 84 5

F inancial  l iab il ities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 21 4 39 9 38 29 4

Total  2 14 399 38 2 94
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N ote 12 :  Events occurring after th e b al ance date

The architecture tender for the New V isitor Centre was awarded after 30 June 20 23, refer to note 8 .1 .

There have been no other events subsequent to balance date, which would have a material effect on the 
RTBG Financial Statements as at 30 June 20 23.

N ote 13:  O th er significant accounting pol icies and j udgements

The following explains the significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements of the RTBG. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise 
stated.

13.1 O b j ectives and funding

The RTBG is a State Government statutory organisation, governed by the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 
Act 2002 and is administered by NRE Tas. The seven- member RTBG Board is appointed by, and reports to, 
the M inister for P arks. The Board is responsible for managing, conserving and enhancing the RTBG in 
accordance with the Act.

The RTBG is Tasmania’s only botanical gardens and is custodian of the state’s botanical collections. In 
addition to responsibility for the management of Tasmania’s botanical collections and associated functions, the 
RTBG is responsible for the development and delivery of horticultural and botanical based community 
education and learning programmes, the provision of visitor facilities and services, the development and 
delivery of innovative and engaging interpretation and information services, and the conservation and 
presentation of the significant built and cultural heritage of the site in accordance with the RTBG Strategic 
M aster P lan 20 0 9 - 20 29 .

An annual appropriation is received through NRE Tas, accounting for 76 per cent of the RTBG revenue in 20 23 
(8 1 per cent in 20 22), with the remaining funds being generated through RTBG programs and initiatives.

13.2  B asis of accounting

The Financial Statements are a general purpose financial report and have been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002, Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Treasurer’s Instructions 
issued under the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2016.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified 
by the revaluation of selected non- current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value 
basis of accounting has been applied. The accounting policies are generally consistent with the previous year.

Compliance with the Australian Accounting Standards may not result in compliance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, as the AAS include requirements and options available to not- for- profit organisations that 
are inconsistent with IFRS. RTBG is considered to be not- for- profit and has adopted some accounting policies 
under the AAS that do not comply with IFRS.

The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern. The continued existence of the RTBG in its 
present form, undertaking its current activities, is dependent on Government policy and on continuing 
appropriations by P arliament for the RTBG’s administration and activities.

13.3 F unctional  and presentation currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the RTBG functional currency.

13.4  Ch anges in accounting pol icies

(a) Impact of new and revised Accounting Standards

In the current year there are no new or revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board that are relevant to the RTBG’s operations and effective for the current annual reporting period.

The RTBG has reviewed the pending Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board and conclude they will not have a material impact on the RTBG’s operations.
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13.5 Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted to reflect any changes in accounting policy or the adoption of new 
standards. Where amounts have been reclassified within the Financial Statements, the comparative statements 
have been restated.

13.6 Rounding

All amounts in the Financial Statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated. As a 
consequence, rounded figures may not add to totals.

13.7 Taxation

The RTBG is exempt from all forms of taxation except fringe benefits tax and goods and services tax (GST).

Revenues and expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the GST is not recoverable 
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated exclusive of GST. The RTBG 
is grouped for GST purposes with NRE Tas. The RTBG Business Activity Statement reporting is managed 
through NRE Tas. As such, any amount recoverable or payable to the ATO is disclosed in the NRE Tas Financial 
Statements.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, the GST component of cash flows arising from operating and investing activities 
that is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

13.8 Judgments and assumptions

In the application of Australian Accounting Standards, the RTBG is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the 
judgements. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. Judgements made by the RTBG that have significant effects on the Financial 
Statements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the Financial Statements. This includes 
Note 7.3 for Employee benefit liabilities. The RTBG has made no assumptions concerning the future that may 
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period.

13.9 Segment information

The entity operates principally in one industry segment being the management of all functions particular to the 
operations of a botanic gardens wholly within the State of Tasmania.

13.10 Economic dependency

The RTBG derives its revenue principally from Government funding.
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VISIT US:
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